
  

THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED WITH IN PERSON 
ATTENDANCE PERMITTED WITH LIMITED CAPACITY IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH COUNTY AND STATE COVID 
GUIDELINES, INCLUDING MASK REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL 
THOSE ATTENDING IN PERSON. PARTICIPATION WILL 
ALSO BE AVAILABLE VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE OR 
TELECONFERENCE.    

TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA VIDEO OR TELECONFERENCE, GO TO 
https://rainbowmwd.zoom.us/j/88094320417 OR CALL 1-669-900-6833 or 1-346-248-7799 or 1- 253-215-
8782 or 1-301-715-8592 or 1-312-626-6799 or 1-929-205-6099 (WEBINAR/MEETING ID: 880 9432 0417). 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WISHING TO SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENT TO THE COMMITTEE UNDER 
PUBLIC COMMENT OR ON A SPECIFIC AGENDA ITEM MAY SUBMIT COMMENTS TO OUR BOARD 
SECRETARY BY EMAIL AT DWASHBURN@RAINBOWMWD.COM OR BY MAIL TO 3707 OLD HIGHWAY 395, 
FALLBROOK, CA 92028.  ALL WRITTEN COMMENTS RECEIVED AT LEAST ONE HOUR IN ADVANCE OF 
THE MEETING WILL BE READ TO THE COMMITTEE DURING THE APPROPRIATE PORTION OF THE 
MEETING. THESE PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES SUPERSEDE THE DISTRICT’S STANDARD PUBLIC 
COMMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES TO THE CONTRARY. 

              BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Tuesday, November 16, 2021 
Budget and Finance Committee Meeting - Time: 1:00 p.m. 
 
District Office         3707 Old Highway 395       Fallbrook, CA  92028 

Notice is hereby given that the Budget and Finance Committee will be holding a regular meeting 
beginning at 1:00 p.m. on Tuesday, November 16, 2021. 
 
AGENDA 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL:  Flint Nelson (Chair)_____   Julie Johnson (Vice Chair)_____ 

  
 Members:   Peter Hensley ____     
 
  Alternates: Chad Williams_____ 
    

4. INSTRUCTIONS TO ALLOW PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS FROM THOSE 
ATTENDING THIS MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE OR VIDEO CONFERENCE 
CHAIR TO READ ALOUD - “If at any point, anyone would like to ask a question or make a comment and 
have joined this meeting with their computer, they can click on the “Raise Hand” button located at the 
bottom of the screen.  We will be alerted that they would like to speak.  When called upon, please unmute 
the microphone and ask the question or make comments in no more than three minutes.  
  
 Those who have joined by dialing a number on their telephone, will need to press *6 to unmute themselves 
and then *9 to alert us that they would like to speak. 
 
A slight pause will also be offered at the conclusion of each agenda item discussion to allow public members 
an opportunity to make comments or ask questions.” 

Page 1 of 129

https://rainbowmwd.zoom.us/j/88094320417
mailto:DWASHBURN@RAINBOWMWD.COM


  

   
5. SEATING OF ALTERNATES 

 
6. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA (Government Code §54954.2) 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT RELATING TO ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Limit 3 Minutes) 
 
*8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 A. October 12, 2021 
 
9. GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS 
 
10. FINANCE MANAGER COMMENTS 
 
11. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
*12. AUDIT REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCEPTANCE 
 
13. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT (MWD) LAWSUIT PAYMENT DISTRIBUTION 
 
*14. CUSTOMER VARIANCE REQUEST – JENSEN 
 
*15. CUSTOMER VARIANCE REQUEST – MCENEANEY 
 
16. CASH RESERVE POLICY 5.02.220 COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 
17. DISCUSSION REGARDING CURRENT COMMITTEE VACANCY 
 
18. WATER SERVICE UPGRADE PROJECT (WSUP) PROGRAM UPDATE 
 
19. REDISTRICTING UPDATE  
 
20. REVIEW OF THE MONTHLY BOARD FINANCE PACKET 
 
21. LIST OF SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT SCHEDULED BUDGET AND 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
22. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

ATTEST TO POSTING: 
 
 

 
  11-4-21 @ 1:45 p.m. 
FOR: Pam Moss 
Secretary of the Board 

 Date and Time of Posting 
Outside Display Cases 

 
 

 

Page 2 of 129



DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT 

   Page 1 of 5 
20211012_draft 

 

          
MINUTES OF THE BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

OF THE RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
OCTOBER 12, 2021 

 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  The Budget & Finance Committee meeting of the Rainbow Municipal Water 

District was called to order on October 12, 2021 by Chairperson Nelson in the Board Room of the 
District Office at 3707 Old Highway 395, Fallbrook, CA 92028 at 1:00 p.m.  (All meetings are being 
held with in person attendance following County and State COVID guidelines as well as virtually.)     
Chairperson Nelson presiding. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL: 
 

Present:   Member Rindfleisch (via video conference), Member Hensley, Member 
Nelson. 

 
 Absent:    Member Johnson. 
 
 Also Present:  General Manager Kennedy, Executive Assistant Washburn, Finance 

Manager Largent. 
 

Also Present Via Teleconference or Video Conference: 
 

Alternate Williams, Construction and Maintenance Supervisor Lagunas, 
Information Technology Manager Khattab, Information Systems Specialist 
Espino. 

 
Two members of the public were present via teleconference or video teleconference. 

    
4. INSTRUCTIONS TO ALLOW PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS FROM THOSE 

ATTENDING THIS MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE OR VIDEO CONFERENCE 
 

Mr. Nelson read aloud the instructions for those attending the meeting via teleconference or video 
conference. 

   
5. SEATING OF ALTERNATES 
 
 There were no alternates seated. 
 
6. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA (Government Code §54954.2) 
 

There were no amendments to the agenda. 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT RELATING TO ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Limit 3 Minutes) 
 

There were no comments. 
 
  

Page 3 of 129



DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT 

   Page 2 of 5 
20211012_draft 

 

*8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 A. September 14, 2021 
  
 Motion:  
 

The minutes be approved as written. 
 

Action: Approve, Moved by Member Hensley, Seconded by Member Rindfleisch. 
  
 Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Ayes = 3). 

 
Ayes: Member Rindfleisch, Member Hensley, Member Nelson. 

   
9. GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS 
  

Mr. Kennedy updated the committee on the most recent SDCWA Board meeting where 
discussions took place regarding the SDCWA Long-Range Financial Plan.  He also reported 
SDCWA was victorious in its lawsuit against MWD for which MWD wrote a check in the amount 
of $36 million to SDCWA of which RMWD will receive a portion. 
 
Mr. Nelson requested confirmation all the items contained in the suite of motions from the City of 
San Diego were adopted by the 67% vote.  Mr. Kennedy confirmed. 

 
10. FINANCE MANAGER COMMENTS 
 

Ms. Largent reported the month of September has been closed out and how it was anticipated 
there would be more customer calls due to the rate increase, PSAWR enrollment date expiration; 
however, there was not a large increase in calls but rather a decrease due to fixing some issues 
with the phone systems.  She noted the results of the customers formally TSAWR that signed up 
for PSAWR totaled approximately 34% making up 52% of the sales of that group of customers 
and that feedback received was many large growers could not afford to take the cutback with 
drought conditions.  She stated this will continued to be monitored by staff.  

 
11. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
  

There were no comments.  
 
*12. STATE WATER AND WASTEWATER ARREARAGE PAYMENT PROGRAM 
  

Ms. Largent explained this was the program for which RMWD has taken the first step in applying 
for funds through the State for any customers who had a past due balance between March 2020 
and June 2021 which consisted of a complex survey.  She stated now that this step has been 
completed, it appears RMWD will receive $1.48 million plus any associated administrative fees 
associated with doing that process.  She noted one RMWD receives the funds, there is no 
requirement on RMWD nor is RMWD allowed to ask if these customers had any related COVID-
19 reasons for not paying their bills.  She pointed out there is a standard that whenever a debt is 
forgiven, it is taxable; however, now the State is stating these are not taxable for those getting 
their accounts credited, but this has not been made official.  She reported staff is in the process 
of drafting a letter to be sent to the appropriate customers notifying them their accounts will be 
credited and once RMWD receives the funds.  She also mentioned the matter of whether a 1099 
can be sent to someone without a Social Security Number was being investigated.  She pointed 
out direction was also provided by the State related to those accounts that have already been 

Page 4 of 129



DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT 

   Page 3 of 5 
20211012_draft 

 

submitted to tax roll and collection to which the State advised RMWD credit the accounts for future 
services.   
 
Mr. Hensley inquired as to whether the amount being received matched what RMWD had 
anticipated.  Ms. Largent explained this was the amount submitted by RMWD and appears to 
have been accepted by the State.  
 
Mr. Nelson noted at a previous meeting, there was a conversation regarding customers being in 
arrears having the amount transferred to their property tax bill; therefore, he wanted to know if 
this would need to be unwound by RMWD.  Ms. Largent explained the State has advised those 
customers reported to tax rolls be given a credit on their account and not pull the amount from 
the property tax bill.  Discussion ensued. 
 

13. AUDIT UPDATE 
  

Ms. Largent stated this was the second year RMWD received a clean audit.  She noted this year’s 
audit was better than last year in that there were only two very small things left over from last year 
in the management letter.  She said this mixed with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
and the award received for such will really help bring RMWD’s package forward to the bank for 
the water efficiency projects.  She mentioned she met with Western Alliance Bank last week who 
have good rates available to the District right now and what projects that may be included in the 
funding package for the Board to consider.   
 
Ms. Largent noted the next steps with finishing up the audit are reporting out the reserve balances 
to the committee and Board, update the fund balance projections, mid-year budget adjustments 
and any changes mentioned earlier.   
 
Mr. Kennedy added some of the wholesale water efficiency projects being financed in this manner 
was due to the detachment; however, when SDCWA changed their rates in June very different 
discussions may be held with both this committee as well as the Board of Directors.    
 
Mr. Nelson inquired as to the term of the financing.  Ms. Largent stated she has not yet looked at 
the specific options.  Mr. Nelson asked if RMWD should anticipate receiving lump sum funding as 
opposed to a series of smaller loans tied to each project specifically.  Mr. Kennedy explained it 
would depend on the different options available.    

 
14. SHUT OFF MORATORIUM UPDATE 
  

Ms. Largent reported staff was prepared to proceed with shutoffs in the beginning of October at 
which time the Governor and legislature pushed that out to the end of December. 
 
Mr. Rindfleisch asked about the program to reimburse past due water bills for water agencies 
across the state and whether it also applies toward other utilities.  Ms. Largent stated she was not 
aware of the programs associated with other utilities. 

 
15. WATER SERVICE UPGRADE PROJECT (WSUP) PROGRAM UPDATE 
 

Mr. Williams reported the project is now 75% complete and that things continue to go very well.  
Mr. Kennedy added a great deal of data is being collected throughout the course of completing 
this project. 

 
  

Page 5 of 129



DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT 

   Page 4 of 5 
20211012_draft 

 

Mr. Hensley asked if it were found cases where piping would be at risk, would District staff reach 
out to the customer to offer some instructions.  Mr. Kennedy stated in the event crew members 
found something of risk, staff would surely notify the customers.  Mr. Williams added when RMWD 
and Concord crews are on location and note something interesting, they are in contact with the 
customers.  
 
Mr. Nelson mentioned RMWD borrowed money for this project and asked if the nature of the loan 
is one in which the ultimate encumbrance by the District is how much is actually spent even though 
it may be less than the amount authorized by the lending authority.  Ms. Largent explained RMWD 
took the entire amount and placed it in money market accounts on which the project costs are 
drawn down from; therefore, RMWD has been paying on the total amount of the debt but also 
getting interest on the amount not used or spent yet.  Mr. Nelson asked if the project concludes 
as is being predicted and RMWD ends up spending $1 million or more less than the amount for 
which the project is budgeted, what happens to the excess monies.  Ms. Largent stated any 
budgeted monies not spent on the project will be brought to the committee and Board with options 
to consider.   
 
Mr. Nelson stated although he was not advocating this, he wanted to know if the lending authority 
would most likely not have a problem with RMWD ultimately borrowing more than what actually 
expended on the project that is guaranteed by the savings.  Ms. Largent stated she was making 
sure RMWD uses the actual lease for the draw down and the other one has more liberal uses.  
Mr. Kennedy explained why the lease may be more challenging due to restrictions.   

 
16. DISCUSSION REGARDING POSSIBLE RESCHEDULING NOVEMBER 9, 2021 BUDGET AND 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
  

Ms. Largent noted she had originally suggested looking at possibly rescheduling the November 
9th committee meeting because there is no November Board meeting so that she would have an 
opportunity to finalize and present the financial report to the committee prior to taking it to the 
Board at their December meeting.  She noted this was not crucial, but rather a suggestion to 
provide an opportunity for the committee to review the audit and Comprehensive Financial Report 
packet before it is presented to the Board.   
 
It was decided to reschedule the November 9, 2021, to November 16, 2021, at 1:00 p.m.  Ms. 
Washburn agreed to send an email to everyone notifying them of this change as well as revise 
any calendars, etc.  

 
 Motion:  
 
 To change the Budget and Finance Committee meeting from November 9, 2021, to 

November 16, 2021, on a one-time basis. 
 
 Action: Approve, Moved by Member Hensley, Seconded by Member Rindfleisch. 
  
 Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Ayes = 3). 
 
 Ayes: Member Rindfleisch, Member Hensley, Member Nelson. 
   
  

Page 6 of 129



DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT 

   Page 5 of 5 
20211012_draft 

 

*17. REVIEW THE MONTHLY BOARD FINANCE PACKET 
   
 Mr. Hensley asked what kind of rate RMWD receives on the money market account.  Ms. Largent 

stated it was approximately 1.1%, but she will confirm.   
 
 Ms. Largent pointed out she will be adding a quarterly report related to project spending; however, 

she wanted to receive committee input as to whether this should be included in the fund balance 
projections or provided in a separate report.  Mr. Nelson recommended all this information be 
included in the fund balance projections.  Mr. Hensley agreed.  Ms. Largent confirmed she would 
do the same for water and wastewater. 

 
 Mr. Kennedy noticed RMWD was down 6% year-to-date on water sales from last year.  He 

explained the challenge will be if there is a dry winter again next year, the State will most likely 
force mandatory cutbacks.  Mr. Hensley asked how RMWD forces customers to cut. Mr. Kennedy 
stated a whole series of steps are provided in the District’s Urban Water Management Plan where 
it states if customers do not cutback, penalties will be imposed.  He noted RMWD could also be 
penalized if its customers do not cutback in their water use. Mr. Hensley stated if the key is to 
impose penalties, are the fines large enough to be effective as opposed to customers being willing 
to pay extra to get the water.  Mr. Kennedy agreed this was also part of the challenge and how 
SDCWA and MWD will charge RMWD more money that would turn be allocated to those 
customers who exceeded their allocation during the period of time established.    

 
 Mr. Nelson referenced Page 12 of the agenda packet inquiring as to whether the gross revenues 

being up by $2 million over projection was correct.  Ms. Largent explained this was seasonal with 
the numbers being for July and August.  Mr. Nelson asked about the red line presented on Page 
28 being below both the FY21 purchases as well as the 5-year average.  Mr. Kennedy explained 
every month is 1/12 of the year so it always shows this way at the beginning of the fiscal year. 

 
18. LIST OF SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT SCHEDULED BUDGET AND 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
  

It was noted the review of the audit report, WSUP update, and SDCWA/MWD lawsuit payment 
distribution, and committee membership. 

 
Mr. Kennedy announced this would be Mr. Rindfleisch’s last meeting due him relocating to 
Arizona.  He wished Mr. Rindfleisch well and thanked him for serving on the committee over the 
past several years.  Mr. Nelson thanked Mr. Rindfleisch stating the committee will miss him.  Mr. 
Rindfleisch stated his relocation was very unexpected, he will miss the committee very much, and 
thanked the committee for welcoming him in this capacity.  

 
19. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 The meeting was adjourned by Member Nelson. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:53 p.m. 
 
           _____________________________________ 
           Flint Nelson, Committee Chairperson 
       
Dawn M. Washburn, Board Secretary 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 129





 

 

        BOARD ACTION 
 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
December 7, 2021 

 
 
SUBJECT 

PRESENTATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE AUDIT REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2021  
 
 
BACKGROUND 

Annually, the District contracts for the preparation of an independent audit and compilation of the year-end 
financial statements with a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) firm. This year the District authorized for the 
first year a contract with Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP to conduct the fiscal year 20-21 annual audit.  
 
The district prepared an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the first time for FY 2020 and 
submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) to determine eligibility for the 
Distinguished Annual Comprehensive Financial Report Presentation Award.  The District received the 
award in the first year of publishing the document.  We believe the FY 2022 Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report continues to meet the program requirements and will be submitted to the GFOA to 
determine its eligibility for another award.   
 
 
DESCRIPTION 

The audited financial statements serve as a vital resource for financial information and fiscal transparency.  
 
The annual financial report has been compiled into an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) 
for the second year.  The ACFR includes three sections: 1.) Introductory Section, 2.) Financial Section, 
including the financial statements and notes; and 3.) Statistical Section.   
 
The statements present a picture of the District’s financial condition. The following are highlights of the 
District’s financial condition that are depicted within the Fiscal Year 20-21 audit. 
 

• Operating income for the current year was a gain of  $1,157,891 compared to a loss of  $7,807,170  
in the prior year.   
 

• Nonoperating income for the current year was a gain of $1,945,256 compared to a gain of   
$1,076,914 for the prior year.   

 

• Operating revenues increased by $9,846,310 to $46,047,563. 
 

• Operating expenses increased by $881,259 to $44,889,672. 
 

• The District's net position from the prior fiscal year increased by $7,994,500 or 9.1%. 
 

Page 8 of 129



 

 

• This year the District had $10,092,792 worth of net additions to capital assets compared to 
$10,807,591 last year.  This is largely due to the meter replacement project and acceptance of 
assets from developer agreements. 

 
 
There were no major audit findings for the FY 20-21.  The audit received an unqualified opinion of the 
representation of the financial records. An unqualified opinion indicates that the financial records have 
been maintained in accordance with the standards known as Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP).  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Annual Comprehensive Financial Report FY 20-21 

• Audit Communication Letter 

• Audit Report on Internal Controls 

• Audit Management Letter 
 
 
POLICY/STRATEGIC PLAN KEY FOCUS AREA 

Strategic Focus Area Four: Fiscal Responsibility  
 
This audit was performed to document our practice of using Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) that demonstrate prudent fiscal activities.  
 
Copies of the audit are mailed to the State Controller’s Office and the San Diego County Auditor & 
Controller. Upon request a copy of the audit will be mailed to the Special Districts Risk Management 
Authority.  
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL 

In accordance with CEQA guidelines Section 15378, the action before the Board does not constitute a 
“project” as defined by CEQA and further environmental review is not required at this time. 
 
 
BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS 

Board option of non-acceptance would result in no changes to the numbers presented within the audit 
itself. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board of Directors accept the June 30, 2021 audit of the District by the CPA firm of 
Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP. 
 
 
 

Tracy Largent, CPA 
Finance Manager 

December 7, 2021 

 

Page 9 of 129



Page 10 of 129

INBOW 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

Committed to Excellence 





Page 11 of 129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 12 of 129



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 Page 
 Number 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 
Letter of Transmittal ................................................................................................................................. i 
Mission Statement & Core Values ....................................................................................................... viii 
District Board of Directors and Principal Officials ................................................................................... x 
Organizational Chart ............................................................................................................................. xii 
Government Finance Officers Association Certificate ......................................................................... xiii 
 
FINANCIAL SECTION  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT .................................................................................................. 1 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ................................................................................ 5 

Basic Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Position ......................................................................................................... 13 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position .............................................. 15 
 
Statement of Cash Flows .......................................................................................................... 16 

 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements ............................................................................................... 21 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Miscellaneous Risk Pool - 
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ............................................. 44 

Miscellaneous Risk Pool - Schedule of Plan Contributions ....................................................... 46 

Other Post-Employment Benefits - 
Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ..................................... 48 

 

Page 13 of 129



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 Page 
 Number 

STATISTICAL SECTION 
 

Net Position by Component ...................................................................................................... 52 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ................................................................ 53 
Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ............................................ 55 
Summary of Revenues and Expenses ...................................................................................... 56 
Revenues by Source ................................................................................................................. 57 
Expenses by Function ............................................................................................................... 58 
Computation of Legal Debt Margin ........................................................................................... 59 
Total Assessed Value ............................................................................................................... 60 
Consumption by Customer Class .............................................................................................. 61 
Top Ten Water Consumers Fiscal Year 2021 ........................................................................... 62 
Top Ten Water Consumers Fiscal Year 2012 ........................................................................... 63 
Rate Summaries ....................................................................................................................... 64 
Historical Water Demand and Recent Trends .......................................................................... 66 
Top 10 Employers ..................................................................................................................... 67 
Full-Time Equivalent Employees by Department ...................................................................... 68 
Historical Turnover .................................................................................................................... 69 
San Diego Area Economic Summary ....................................................................................... 70 
Climate and Topography ........................................................................................................... 72 
Map of District Service Area ...................................................................................................... 73 
Map of District Location ............................................................................................................. 74 
Map of District Commute Times ................................................................................................ 75 
Sandag and Costar Submarkets ............................................................................................... 76 
Sandag Projections – County Population ................................................................................. 77 
Sandag Projections – North County East/MSA5 Population .................................................... 78 

 

Page 14 of 129



Page 15 of 129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 16 of 129



To our Ratepayers, the Board of Directors, and Members of the Budget & Finance Committee of Rainbow 
Municipal Water District:

            
 
 

            
 

 
                  

i

Page 17 of 129



ii

Page 18 of 129



iii

Page 19 of 129



iv

Page 20 of 129



v

Page 21 of 129



vi

Page 22 of 129



 
 
 

        
 

        
             

 
       

              
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

                

 
 
 
 

 
             

vii

Page 23 of 129



viii

Page 24 of 129



ix

Page 25 of 129



x

Page 26 of 129

INBOW 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

Committed to Excellence 



xi

Page 27 of 129



xii

Page 28 of 129

II 

. ~ I 

I ··. 1~::. 1:. 
1~•-•., .. I< •• 

IIIH I .I: _ 1 _ I I 

111.}g). ~Ji 
. . ~ fl 

<C ~! 

111 ~ 



Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of 
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial 
Reporting

Presented to

Rainbow Municipal Water District
California

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2020

Executive Director/CEO

xiii

Page 29 of 129

• 

~P-~ 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 30 of 129



Page 31 of 129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 32 of 129



 
 
 

  
 

 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

203 N. Brea Blvd., Suite 203 Brea, CA 92821 Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP Phone: 714.672.0022 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

To the Board of Directors 
Rainbow Municipal Water District 
Fallbrook, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rainbow Municipal Water District (the District), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the District as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States  
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum 
Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  
We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits.  We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the date of the financial statements. 

Page 33 of 129

Ls~ .... •••• •• 

~ PrimeGlobal 
,1nAmx:im/,m(Jj 

lr1dep=k11tAc:umr1ti11q Firm~ 



 
To the Board of Directors 
Rainbow Municipal Water District 
Fallbrook, California 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the GAAS will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users made 
on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsible to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate tin the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  According, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 
 
Other Reporting Responsibilities 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s 
discussion and analysis, the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability, the schedule of 
plan contributions, and the schedule of changes in the total other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability 
as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

2
Page 34 of 129

Ls~ .... •••• •• 



 
To the Board of Directors 
Rainbow Municipal Water District 
Fallbrook, California 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and statistical section are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 
2021 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
Brea, California 
October 31, 2021 
 

3
Page 35 of 129

Ls~ .... •••• •• 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

4
Page 36 of 129



Basic Financial Statements 
Management Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.

5
Page 37 of 129



Financial Statements. 

Statement of Net Position, 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

6
Page 38 of 129



Statement of Net Position

7
Page 39 of 129



Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

8
Page 40 of 129



 
 

RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued) 
 
The following table presents a summary of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021:  

FY 2021 FY 2020 $ Change % Change
Operating Revenues:

Operating Revenues Water Sales 41,779,797$                    33,156,919$                    8,622,878$                       26.0%
Operating Revenues Wastewater Sales 3,461,256                         2,621,433                         839,823                            32.0%
Operating Revenues Other 806,510                            425,525                            380,985                            89.5%
Operating Expenses (44,889,672)                     (44,008,413)                     (881,259)                           2.0%
Non-operating Revenues:

Property Tax Revenue 685,562                            653,320                            32,242                               ‐                       
Investment Income (35,395)                             841,596                            (876,991)                           ‐                       
Other 1,866,928                         282,991                            1,583,937                         ‐                       
Non-operating Expenses (571,839)                           (616,775)                           44,936                               ‐7.3%
Gain/(Loss) Before Capital Cont 3,103,147                         (6,643,404)                        9,746,551                         ‐146.7%
Capital Contributions 4,804,501                         11,239,897                       (6,435,396)                        ‐57.3%
Change in Net Position 7,907,648                         4,596,493                         3,311,155                         72.0%
Total Net Position (Beg) 88,168,656                       83,572,163                       4,596,493                         5.5%
Total Net Position, End 96,076,304$                    88,168,656$                    7,907,648$                       9.0%

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position
Table 2

 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 

FY 2021 FY 2020 $ Change % Change

Land 1,977,490$                    1,977,490$                    -                                       -                     

Construction in Progress 16,319,412                    7,796,283                      8,523,129                      109.3%

Buildings & Improvements 1,083,174                      1,026,246                      56,928                            5.5%

Reservoirs, Pipelines, & Tanks 154,424,398                  151,581,951                  2,842,447                      1.9%

Meters 1,352,996                      1,352,996                      -                                       -                     

Equipment 5,104,639                      4,814,128                      290,511                          6.0%

Invest in Sewer Rights 9,396,317                      8,764,700                      631,617                          7.2%

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (89,669,782)                   (87,417,942)                   (2,251,840)                     2.6%

Total Capital Assets 99,988,644$                  89,895,852$                  10,092,792$                  11.2%

Table 3
Changes in Capital Assets

 

9
Page 41 of 129



Debt

10
Page 42 of 129



11
Page 43 of 129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

12
Page 44 of 129



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

Assets:
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 4,554,561$        
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,135,119          
Investments 12,682,963        
Accounts receivable - water and sewer, net 8,038,455          
Interest receivable 59,630               
Taxes and assessments receivable 3,247                 
Other receivable 8,018                 
Inventories 2,402,739          
Prepaid costs 637,718             

Total Current Assets 36,522,450        

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:

Land 1,977,490          
Construction in progress 16,319,412        
Buildings and improvements 1,083,174          
Reservoir, pipelines, and tanks 154,424,398      
Meters 1,352,996          
Equipment 5,104,639          
Investment in sewer rights 9,396,317          
Less: accumulated depreciation (89,669,782)       

Total Noncurrent Assets 99,988,644        
Total Assets 136,511,094      

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred amounts from pension 1,399,815          

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,399,815          

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

13
Page 45 of 129



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 6,639,741          
Accrued expenses 380,727             
Construction meter deposits 94,901               
Developer deposits 473,408             
Unearned revenues 321,936             
Compensated absences, current portion 59,819               
Current portion of notes payable 1,846,696          

Total Current Liabilities 9,817,228          

Noncurrent Liabilities:
OPEB liability 712,262             
Accrued compensated absences 538,375             
Net pension liability 8,158,280          
Prepaid capacity fees 2,713,378          
Notes payable, net of current portion 19,324,857        

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 31,447,152        
Total Liabilities 41,264,380        

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred amounts on pension 570,225             

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 570,225             

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 78,817,091        
Restricted for capital projects 7,312,691          
Restricted for debt service 822,428             
Unrestricted 9,124,094          

Total Net Position 96,076,304$      

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

14
Page 46 of 129



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Operating Revenues:
Water sales 41,779,797$      
Wastewater revenue 3,461,256          
Other operating revenue 806,510             

Total Operating Revenues 46,047,563        

Operating Expenses:
Cost of purchased water 25,916,888        
Board of directors 16,843               
Pumping 627,681             
Operations 2,055,704          
Valve maintenance 447,295             
Distribution 2,516,855          
Meters 1,190,746          
Garage 500,127             
Administration 2,048,907          
Human Resources 344,374             
Risk management 960,809             
Information technology 954,151             
Finance 807,352             
Customer Service 701,148             
Wastewater 766,637             
Engineering 1,624,801          
Depreciation 2,327,663          
Other operating expense 1,081,691          

Total Operating Expenses 44,889,672        
Operating Income 1,157,891          

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Property tax revenue 685,562             
Investment income (35,395)              
Other nonoperating revenue 1,866,928          
Interest expense (571,839)            

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 1,945,256          
Income before Capital Contributions 3,103,147          

Capital contributions 4,804,501          
Change in Net Position 7,907,648          

Net Position, Beginning of Year 88,168,656        
Net Position, End of Year 96,076,304$      

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

15
Page 47 of 129



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers 43,224,903$      
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (33,498,094)       
Cash paid to employees for services (6,646,912)         

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3,079,897          

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Property taxes received 686,667             

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities 686,667             

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (7,615,954)         
Principal paid on capital debt (1,798,693)         
Interest paid on capital debt (571,839)            
Other nonoperating (1,319,910)         

Net Cash (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities (11,306,396)       

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Sales of investments 2,343,912          
Loss on investments (19,797)              

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 2,324,115          
Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (5,215,717)         

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 17,905,397        
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 12,689,680$      

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to
Amounts Reported on the Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents 4,554,561$        
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,135,119          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 12,689,680$      

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

16
Page 48 of 129



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating income 1,157,891$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 2,327,663          
(Increase) in accounts receivable - water and sewer, net (3,605,610)         
Decrease in other receivable 14,258               
Decrease in inventories 1,034,548          
(Increase) in prepaid costs (384,577)            
Increase in accounts payable 596,845             
Increase in accrued expenses 80,787               
Increase in unearned revenue 311,557             
Increase in deposits 457,135             
Increase in compensated absences 105,011             
Increase in OPEB obligation 3,369                 
Increase in pension obligation 981,020             

Total Adjustments 1,922,006          
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3,079,897$        

Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Capital contributions 4,804,501$        
Unrealized loss on investments (363,145)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

17
Page 49 of 129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

18
Page 50 of 129



19
Page 51 of 129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

20
Page 52 of 129



21
Page 53 of 129



deferred outflows of resources

22
Page 54 of 129



deferred inflows of resources

23
Page 55 of 129



24
Page 56 of 129



25
Page 57 of 129



26
Page 58 of 129



Annual Comprehensive Financial 
Report annual comprehensive financial report
ACFR comprehensive annual financial 
report

27
Page 59 of 129



28
Page 60 of 129



29
Page 61 of 129



30
Page 62 of 129



31
Page 63 of 129



32
Page 64 of 129



33
Page 65 of 129



34
Page 66 of 129



35
Page 67 of 129



36
Page 68 of 129



37
Page 69 of 129



38
Page 70 of 129



39
Page 71 of 129



40
Page 72 of 129



41
Page 73 of 129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

42
Page 74 of 129



43
Page 75 of 129



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

MISCELLANEOUS RISK POOL
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 1

2021 2020 2019
Measurement Date 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018

Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.0750% 0.0735% 0.0716%

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 8,158,280$         7,527,597$         6,899,648$         

Covered Payroll 4,935,944$         5,212,648$         3,887,469$         

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as 
Percentage of Covered Payroll 165.3% 144.4% 177.5%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability 75.1% 75.3% 75.3%

Notes to Schedule of Proportationate Share of the Net Pension Liability:

Benefit Changes:
None

Changes of Assumptions:
2021:  None 
2020:  None

2018:  The accounting discount rate reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent.
2017:  None
2016:  The discount rate was changed from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent to correct

for an adjustment to exclude administrative expense.
2015:  None

1 Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only seven years are shown.

2019:  Demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in accordance to the CalPERS Experience
Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017.  There were no changes in the discount rate.

44
Page 76 of 129



2018 2017 2016 2015
6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014

0.0709% 0.0694% 0.0668% 0.0552%

7,031,525$         6,009,026$         4,584,303$         3,435,302$         

4,118,123$         3,679,407$         3,829,237$         3,873,095$         

170.7% 163.3% 119.7% 88.7%

73.3% 74.1% 78.4% 79.8%

45
Page 77 of 129



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

MISCELLANEOUS RISK POOL
SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 1

2021 2020 2019

Actuarially Determined Contribution 479,387$              512,037$            865,241$            
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (479,387)              (512,037)            (865,241)            
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                          -$                        -$                        

Covered Payroll 5,036,802$           4,935,944$        5,212,648$        

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 9.5% 10.4% 16.6%

Notes to Schedule of Plan Contributions:

Actuarial Cost Method:  Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method/Period:  For details, see June 30, 2018 Funding Valuation Report
Inflation:  2.5%
Salary Increases:  Varies by Entry Age and Service
Payroll Growth:  2.75%
Investment Rate of Return:  7.25% compounded annually (net of inv

1 Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only seven years are shown.

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 2020-21 were derived
from the June 30, 2018 funding valuation report.

Retirement Age:  The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period of 1997 to 
2015.
Mortality:  The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period of 1997 to 2015.  
Pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality rates include 20 years of projected mortality improvement using Scale BB 
published by the Society of Actuaries.

46
Page 78 of 129



2018 2017 2016 2015

743,649$            656,639$            369,170$            570,649$            
(743,649)            (656,639)            (369,170)            (570,649)            

-$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        

3,887,469$        4,118,123$        3,679,407$        3,829,237$        

19.1% 15.9% 10.0% 14.9%

47
Page 79 of 129



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 1

2021 2020 2019 2018
Measurement Date 6/30/2021 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018

Total OPEB Liability:
Service cost 6,294$               5,388$               5,027$               7,607$               
Interest 15,040               22,545               24,801               26,991               
Differences between expected and actual experience 36,255               -                         (108,804)            -                         
Changes in assumptions 2,478                 58,081               68,033               -                         
Benefit payments (56,698)              (42,753)              (43,026)              (24,866)              

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 3,369                 43,261               (53,969)              9,732                 
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning of Year 708,893             665,632             719,601             709,869             
Total OPEB liability - End of Year 712,262$           708,893$           665,632$           719,601$           

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 2 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Covered-employee payroll 2,239,854$        5,395,091$        5,212,648$        4,346,367$        

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 31.8% 13.1% 12.8% 16.6%

Notes to Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios:

Changes in Assumptions:

2018:  None

1 Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only four years are shown.
2 The Total OPEB Liability is an unfunded obligation.  The District does not have a trust dedicated exclusively to the payment of OPEB benefits.

2019:  The discount rate was decreased by 0.37% from 3.87% in fiscal year 2018 to 3.50% in fiscal year 2019 due to changes in market conditions.
2020:  The discount rate was decreased by 1.29% from 3.50% in fiscal year 2019 to 2.21% in fiscal year 2020 due to changes in market conditions.
2021: The discount rate was decreased from 2.21% in fiscal year 2020 to 2.16% in fiscal year 2021 due to changes in market conditions.

48
Page 80 of 129



49
Page 81 of 129



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

50
Page 82 of 129



51
Page 83 of 129



20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

Ne
t I

nv
es

tm
en

t i
n 

Ca
pi

ta
l A

ss
et

s
82

,5
99

,7
83

$ 
  

87
,6

46
,8

49
$ 

    
85

,3
50

,5
81

$ 
    

84
,6

52
,5

84
$ 

    
84

,8
81

,1
07

$ 
    

65
,2

17
,5

30
$ 

   
 

65
,3

99
,0

76
$ 

    
63

,7
39

,6
48

$ 
   

 
72

,3
64

,0
14

$ 
   

 
78

,8
17

,0
91

$ 
   

 
Re

st
ric

te
d 

fo
r C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s
- 

- 
- 

- 
6,

82
7,

95
2

   
   

   
89

4,
49

1
   

   
   

   
 

89
4,

49
1

   
   

   
   

 
3,

32
1,

53
1

   
   

   
11

,0
57

,5
33

   
   

 
7,

31
2,

69
1

   
   

   
Re

st
ric

te
d 

fo
r D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
1,

12
9,

68
3

   
   

   
82

2,
42

8
   

   
   

   
 

Un
re

st
ric

te
d

10
,3

18
,7

63
   

   
   

   
 

5,
44

6,
28

0
   

   
   

6,
69

7,
49

1
   

   
   

2,
11

9,
56

2
   

   
   

1,
54

4,
99

2
   

   
   

17
,1

74
,0

49
   

   
 

16
,5

86
,4

11
   

   
 

16
,5

10
,9

84
   

   
 

3,
53

0,
57

4
   

   
   

9,
12

4,
09

4
   

   
   

To
ta

l N
et

 P
os

iti
on

92
,9

18
,5

46
$ 

  
93

,0
93

,1
29

$ 
  

92
,0

48
,0

72
$ 

  
86

,7
72

,1
46

$ 
  

93
,2

54
,0

51
$ 

  
83

,2
86

,0
70

$ 
  

82
,8

79
,9

78
$ 

  
83

,5
72

,1
63

$ 
  

88
,0

81
,8

04
$ 

  
96

,0
76

,3
04

$ 
  

Pe
rc

en
t C

ha
ng

e
0.

19
%

-1
.1

2%
-5

.7
3%

7.
47

%
-1

0.
69

%
-0

.4
9%

0.
84

%
5.

40
%

9.
08

%
So

ur
ce

: R
ai

nb
ow

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

it
ed

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts

La
st

 T
en

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
rs

N
ET

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

 B
Y 

CO
M

PO
N

EN
T

52
Page 84 of 129



20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

es
:

    
  D

ire
ct

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

ne
vu

es
:

    
    

    
 W

at
er

 S
al

es
30

,1
52

,2
59

$ 
    

34
,5

05
,2

28
$ 

    
36

,4
97

,3
73

$ 
    

34
,0

37
,4

32
$ 

    
32

,1
56

,8
44

$ 
    

33
,0

91
,6

41
$ 

    
38

,1
05

,7
12

$ 
    

32
,8

10
,9

88
$ 

    
33

,1
56

,9
19

$ 
    

41
,7

79
,7

97
$ 

    
    

    
    

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 R
ev

en
ue

2,
50

0,
80

3
    

    
 

2,
57

3,
27

3
    

    
 

2,
55

3,
80

1
    

    
 

2,
67

7,
13

0
    

    
 

2,
63

2,
90

2
    

    
 

2,
54

8,
64

7
    

    
 

2,
52

0,
62

2
    

    
 

2,
84

3,
25

6
    

    
 

2,
62

1,
43

3
    

    
 

3,
46

1,
25

6
    

    
 

    
    

    
 O

th
er

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

e
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
50

1,
01

9
    

    
    

 
99

1,
39

0
    

    
    

 
86

0,
83

9
    

    
    

 
42

5,
52

5
    

    
    

 
80

6,
51

0
    

    
    

 
To

ta
l D

ire
ct

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

es
32

,6
53

,0
62

    
   

37
,0

78
,5

01
    

   
39

,0
51

,1
74

    
   

36
,7

14
,5

62
    

   
34

,7
89

,7
46

    
   

36
,1

41
,3

07
    

   
41

,6
17

,7
24

    
   

36
,5

15
,0

83
    

   
36

,2
03

,8
77

    
   

46
,0

47
,5

63
    

   

    
  I

nd
ire

ct
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Re
ne

vu
es

:
    

    
    

 G
ra

nt
 R

ev
en

ue
19

3,
43

9
    

    
    

 
64

,4
47

    
    

    
   

34
,1

58
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
    

    
    

 O
th

er
85

5,
13

1
    

    
    

 
67

3,
91

0
    

    
    

 
71

0,
84

3
    

    
    

 
51

4,
41

5
    

    
    

 
43

9,
80

7
    

    
    

 
33

1,
84

2
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
To

ta
l I

nd
ire

ct
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Re
ve

nu
es

1,
04

8,
57

0
    

    
 

73
8,

35
7

    
    

    
 

74
5,

00
1

    
    

    
 

51
4,

41
5

    
    

    
 

43
9,

80
7

    
    

    
 

33
1,

84
2

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

es
33

,7
01

,6
32

    
   

37
,8

16
,8

58
    

   
39

,7
96

,1
75

    
   

37
,2

28
,9

77
    

   
35

,2
29

,5
53

    
   

36
,4

73
,1

49
    

   
41

,6
17

,7
24

    
   

36
,5

15
,0

83
    

   
36

,2
03

,8
77

    
   

46
,0

47
,5

63
    

   

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
:

    
  W

at
er

 P
ur

ch
as

es
20

,6
55

,6
53

    
   

24
,3

46
,5

57
    

   
26

,6
49

,3
03

    
   

24
,5

32
,4

68
    

   
22

,3
81

,3
93

    
   

23
,2

82
,3

93
    

   
27

,0
40

,8
73

    
   

22
,4

49
,4

49
    

   
21

,9
17

,9
14

    
   

25
,9

16
,8

88
    

   
    

  W
at

er
 P

um
pi

ng
61

3,
95

8
    

    
    

 
56

6,
44

3
    

    
    

 
3,

83
6,

82
5

    
    

 
3,

81
6,

91
5

    
    

 
63

1,
05

6
    

    
    

 
58

0,
55

6
    

    
    

 
59

1,
52

9
    

    
    

 
55

8,
98

9
    

    
    

 
53

0,
81

5
    

    
    

 
62

7,
68

1
    

    
    

 
    

  T
ra

ns
m

iss
io

n 
an

d 
Di

st
rib

ut
io

n
4,

49
0,

43
5

    
    

 
3,

90
2,

69
9

    
    

 
1,

11
3,

72
1

    
    

 
1,

03
7,

42
0

    
    

 
4,

28
4,

98
1

    
    

 
4,

87
6,

96
0

    
    

 
4,

77
7,

96
4

    
    

 
4,

42
1,

57
1

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
   

   
Op

er
at

io
ns

1
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
2,

83
6,

40
4

    
    

 
2,

05
5,

70
4

    
    

 
    

  V
al

ve
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
1

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

52
2,

93
5

    
    

    
 

44
7,

29
5

    
    

    
 

    
  D

ist
rib

ut
io

n1
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
2,

19
1,

71
2

    
    

 
2,

51
6,

85
5

    
    

 
    

  M
et

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

87
2,

14
6

    
    

    
 

98
4,

32
7

    
    

    
 

76
8,

96
6

    
    

    
 

80
4,

14
0

    
    

    
 

1,
04

4,
63

1
    

    
 

1,
08

5,
55

3
    

    
 

1,
00

3,
89

9
    

    
 

86
8,

92
7

    
    

    
 

1,
89

3,
42

9
    

    
 

1,
19

0,
74

6
    

    
 

    
  S

ew
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

76
4,

35
6

    
    

 
1,

61
3,

56
7

    
    

 
1,

76
3,

82
4

    
    

 
1,

70
8,

77
9

    
    

 
1,

56
6,

84
5

    
    

 
1,

73
5,

47
3

    
    

 
1,

64
6,

59
3

    
    

 
1,

73
8,

94
8

    
    

 
2,

26
8,

30
4

    
    

 
76

6,
63

7
    

    
    

 
   

   
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

an
d 

Ge
ne

ra
l

3,
23

2,
71

2
    

    
 

2,
06

2,
84

0
    

    
 

3,
98

7,
68

7
    

    
 

3,
92

4,
31

1
    

    
 

2,
68

3,
65

8
    

    
 

2,
85

5,
62

3
    

    
 

4,
27

2,
24

6
    

    
 

4,
46

7,
52

1
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

    
  A

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n2

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

3,
27

7,
17

8
    

    
 

2,
04

8,
90

7
    

    
 

    
  G

ar
ag

e2
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
54

4,
45

1
    

    
    

 
50

0,
12

7
    

    
    

 
    

  H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

2
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
29

8,
77

6
    

    
    

 
34

4,
37

4
    

    
    

 
    

  R
isk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t2

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

45
5,

28
8

    
    

    
 

96
0,

80
9

    
    

    
 

    
  I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
3

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

95
4,

15
1

    
    

    
 

   
   

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s2
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
23

,3
36

    
    

    
   

16
,8

43
    

    
    

   
    

  E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

78
0,

74
4

    
    

    
 

90
6,

02
6

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

24
,3

64
    

    
    

   
99

9,
84

4
    

    
    

 
1,

27
9,

19
4

    
    

 
1,

25
4,

29
3

    
    

 
1,

55
1,

50
6

    
    

 
1,

00
5,

43
7

    
    

 
1,

62
4,

80
1

    
    

 
    

  F
in

an
ce

47
4,

86
9

    
    

    
 

58
0,

94
1

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

61
2,

80
0

    
    

    
 

54
5,

97
6

    
    

    
 

60
1,

32
2

    
    

    
 

56
8,

09
1

    
    

    
 

63
2,

45
6

    
    

    
 

80
7,

35
2

    
    

    
 

    
  C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

31
8,

76
8

    
    

    
 

44
8,

08
8

    
    

    
 

14
8,

43
8

    
    

    
 

81
6

    
    

    
    

    
 

33
9,

94
8

    
    

    
 

43
0,

85
0

    
    

    
 

54
9,

82
2

    
    

    
 

1,
51

9,
98

4
    

    
 

71
8,

06
6

    
    

    
 

70
1,

14
8

    
    

    
 

    
  D

ep
re

cia
tio

n
2,

73
4,

06
8

    
    

 
3,

06
2,

58
4

    
    

 
3,

29
5,

21
9

    
    

 
3,

31
8,

24
7

    
    

 
3,

11
0,

96
8

    
    

 
3,

44
5,

47
6

    
    

 
3,

64
8,

43
5

    
    

 
3,

65
6,

64
9

    
    

 
2,

18
9,

06
8

    
    

 
2,

32
7,

66
3

    
    

 
    

  O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
e

2,
70

2,
84

4
    

    
 

1,
08

1,
69

1
    

    
 

To
ta

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
35

,9
37

,7
09

    
   

38
,4

74
,0

72
    

   
41

,5
63

,9
83

    
   

39
,1

67
,4

60
    

   
37

,6
56

,1
24

    
   

40
,1

18
,0

54
    

   
45

,3
86

,9
76

    
   

41
,8

01
,6

35
    

   
44

,0
08

,4
13

    
   

44
,8

89
,6

72
    

   

Ga
in

 (L
os

s)
 fr

om
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

(2
,2

36
,0

77
)

    
    

(6
57

,2
14

)
    

    
   

(1
,7

67
,8

08
)

    
    

(1
,9

38
,4

83
)

    
    

(2
,4

26
,5

71
)

    
    

(3
,6

44
,9

05
)

    
    

(3
,7

69
,2

52
)

    
    

(5
,2

86
,5

52
)

    
    

(7
,8

04
,5

36
)

    
    

1,
15

7,
89

1
    

    
 

La
st

 T
en

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
rs

RE
VE

NU
ES

, E
XP

EN
SE

S,
 A

ND
 C

HA
NG

ES
 IN

 N
ET

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

53
Page 85 of 129



20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

La
st

 T
en

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
rs

RE
VE

NU
ES

, E
XP

EN
SE

S,
 A

ND
 C

HA
NG

ES
 IN

 N
ET

 P
O

SI
TI

O
N

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

N
on

-o
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

es
:

    
  P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Ta
x R

ev
en

ue
82

5,
99

5
    

    
    

 
85

8,
88

4
    

    
    

 
83

1,
29

4
    

    
    

 
85

0,
80

2
    

    
    

 
87

0,
64

2
    

    
    

 
59

5,
25

0
    

    
    

 
61

6,
02

7
    

    
    

 
63

8,
53

9
    

    
    

 
65

3,
32

0
    

    
    

 
68

5,
56

2
    

    
    

 
    

  I
nv

es
tm

en
t i

nc
om

e
23

9,
52

4
    

    
    

 
40

,6
87

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

89
,9

81
    

    
    

   
72

1,
40

8
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
1,

13
4,

11
8

    
    

 
84

1,
59

6
    

    
    

 
(3

5,
39

5)
    

    
    

  
    

  O
th

er
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
35

8,
02

6
    

    
    

 
50

6,
01

5
    

    
    

 
28

2,
99

1
    

    
    

 
1,

86
6,

92
8

    
    

 
To

ta
l N

on
-o

pe
ra

tin
g 

Re
ve

nu
es

1,
06

5,
51

9
    

    
 

89
9,

57
1

    
    

    
 

83
1,

29
4

    
    

    
 

94
0,

78
3

    
    

    
 

1,
59

2,
05

0
    

    
 

59
5,

25
0

    
    

    
 

97
4,

05
3

    
    

    
 

2,
27

8,
67

2
    

    
 

1,
77

7,
90

7
    

    
 

2,
51

7,
09

5
    

    
 

No
n-

op
er

at
in

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
:

    
  I

nt
er

es
t

12
6,

20
2

    
    

    
 

67
,7

74
    

    
    

   
10

8,
54

3
    

    
    

 
40

3,
96

9
    

    
    

 
66

7,
93

9
    

    
    

 
36

1,
03

7
    

    
    

 
37

0,
17

5
    

    
    

 
57

0,
85

5
    

    
    

 
61

6,
77

5
    

    
    

 
57

1,
83

9
    

    
    

 
   

   
Gr

an
t E

xp
en

se
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
To

ta
l N

on
-o

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

12
6,

20
2

    
    

    
 

67
,7

74
    

    
    

   
10

8,
54

3
    

    
    

 
40

3,
96

9
    

    
    

 
66

7,
93

9
    

    
    

 
36

1,
03

7
    

    
    

 
37

0,
17

5
    

    
    

 
57

0,
85

5
    

    
    

 
61

6,
77

5
    

    
    

 
57

1,
83

9
    

    
    

 

M
isc

el
la

ne
ou

s:
    

  C
ap

ita
l C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

29
4,

19
2

    
    

    
 

1,
09

1,
51

5
    

    
 

15
6,

30
2

    
    

    
 

2,
97

2,
96

3
    

    
 

2,
94

1,
09

1
    

    
 

11
,2

39
,8

97
    

   
4,

80
4,

50
1

    
    

 
    

  L
os

s o
n 

Ab
an

do
nm

en
t o

f C
ap

ita
l A

ss
et

s
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
(1

,9
33

,2
40

)
    

    
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
To

ta
l M

isc
el

la
ne

ou
s

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

29
4,

19
2

    
    

    
 

1,
09

1,
51

5
    

    
 

(1
,7

76
,9

38
)

    
    

2,
97

2,
96

3
    

    
 

2,
94

1,
09

1
    

    
 

11
,2

39
,8

97
    

   
4,

80
4,

50
1

    
    

 

Ch
an

ge
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

(1
,2

96
,7

60
)

    
    

17
4,

58
3

    
    

    
 

(1
,0

45
,0

57
)

    
    

(1
,1

07
,4

77
)

    
    

(4
10

,9
45

)
    

    
    

(5
,1

87
,6

30
)

    
    

(1
92

,4
11

)
    

    
    

(6
37

,6
44

)
    

    
    

4,
59

6,
49

3
    

    
 

7,
90

7,
64

8
    

    
 

Ne
t P

os
iti

on
, B

eg
in

ni
ng

94
,2

15
,3

06
    

   
92

,9
18

,5
46

    
   

93
,0

93
,1

29
    

   
92

,0
48

,0
72

    
   

86
,7

72
,1

46
    

   
93

,2
54

,0
51

    
   

83
,2

86
,0

70
    

   
82

,8
79

,9
78

    
   

83
,5

72
,1

63
    

   
88

,1
68

,6
56

    
   

    
  P

rio
r P

er
io

d 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
(4

,1
68

,4
49

)
    

    
6,

89
2,

85
0

    
    

 
(4

,7
80

,3
51

)
    

    
(2

13
,6

81
)

    
    

    
1,

32
9,

82
9

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
Ne

t P
os

iti
on

, B
eg

in
ni

ng
 R

es
ta

te
d

94
,2

15
,3

06
    

   
92

,9
18

,5
46

    
   

93
,0

93
,1

29
    

   
87

,8
79

,6
23

    
   

93
,6

64
,9

96
    

   
88

,4
73

,7
00

    
   

83
,0

72
,3

89
    

   
84

,2
09

,8
07

    
   

83
,5

72
,1

63
    

   
88

,1
68

,6
56

    
   

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

, E
nd

in
g

92
,9

18
,5

46
$ 

    
93

,0
93

,1
29

$ 
    

92
,0

48
,0

72
$ 

    
86

,7
72

,1
46

$ 
    

93
,2

54
,0

51
$ 

    
83

,2
86

,0
70

$ 
    

82
,8

79
,9

78
$ 

    
83

,5
72

,1
63

$ 
    

88
,1

68
,6

56
$ 

    
96

,0
76

,3
04

$ 
    

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 C

ha
ng

e
-1

.3
8%

0.
19

%
-1

.1
2%

-5
.7

3%
7.

47
%

-1
0.

69
%

-0
.4

9%
0.

84
%

5.
50

%
8.

97
%

S
ou

rc
e:

 R
ai

nb
ow

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ite
d 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts

F
oo

tn
ot

es
:

1 P
ri

or
 to

 F
Y

 2
02

0 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 T

ra
ns

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n.
2 P

ri
or

 to
 F

Y
 2

02
0 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

an
d 

G
en

er
al

.
3 P

ri
or

 to
 F

Y
 2

02
1 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

an
d 

G
en

er
al

.

54
Page 86 of 129



20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

es
33

,7
01

,6
32

$ 
   

 
37

,8
16

,8
58

$ 
   

 
39

,7
96

,1
75

$ 
   

 
37

,2
28

,9
77

$ 
   

 
35

,2
29

,5
53

$ 
   

 
36

,4
73

,1
49

$ 
   

 
41

,6
17

,7
24

$ 
   

 
36

,5
15

,0
83

$ 
   

 
36

,2
01

,2
43

$ 
   

 
46

,0
47

,5
63

$ 
   

 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

35
,9

37
,7

09
   

   
 

38
,4

74
,0

72
   

   
 

41
,5

63
,9

83
   

   
 

39
,1

67
,4

60
   

   
 

37
,6

56
,1

24
   

   
 

40
,1

18
,0

54
   

   
 

45
,3

86
,9

76
   

   
 

41
,8

01
,6

35
   

   
 

44
,0

08
,4

13
   

   
 

44
,8

89
,6

72
   

   
 

Ga
in

 (L
os

s)
 fr

om
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

(2
,2

36
,0

77
)

   
   

 
(6

57
,2

14
)

   
   

   
  

(1
,7

67
,8

08
)

   
   

 
(1

,9
38

,4
83

)
   

   
 

(2
,4

26
,5

71
)

   
   

 
(3

,6
44

,9
05

)
   

   
 

(3
,7

69
,2

52
)

   
   

 
(5

,2
86

,5
52

)
   

   
 

(7
,8

07
,1

70
)

   
   

 
1,

15
7,

89
1

   
   

   
No

n-
op

er
at

in
g 

Re
ve

nu
e 

Le
ss

 E
xp

en
se

s
93

9,
31

7
   

   
   

   
83

1,
79

7
   

   
   

   
72

2,
75

1
   

   
   

   
53

6,
81

4
   

   
   

   
92

4,
11

1
   

   
   

   
(1

,6
99

,0
27

)
   

   
  

60
3,

87
8

   
   

   
   

1,
70

7,
81

7
   

   
   

1,
07

6,
91

4
   

   
   

1,
94

5,
25

6
   

   
   

In
co

m
e 

Be
fo

re
 C

ap
ita

l C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
(1

,2
96

,7
60

)
   

   
  

17
4,

58
3

   
   

   
   

(1
,0

45
,0

57
)

   
   

  
(1

,4
01

,6
69

)
   

   
  

(1
,5

02
,4

60
)

   
   

  
(5

,3
43

,9
32

)
   

   
  

(3
,1

65
,3

74
)

   
   

  
(3

,5
78

,7
35

)
   

   
  

(6
,7

30
,2

56
)

   
   

  
3,

10
3,

14
7

   
   

   
Ca

pi
ta

l C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
- 

- 
- 

29
4,

19
2

   
   

   
   

1,
09

1,
51

5
   

   
   

15
6,

30
2

   
   

   
   

2,
97

2,
96

3
   

   
   

2,
94

1,
09

1
   

   
   

11
,2

39
,8

97
   

   
 

4,
80

4,
50

1
   

   
   

Pr
io

r P
er

io
d 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t

- 
- 

- 
(4

,1
68

,4
49

)
   

   
  

6,
89

2,
85

0
   

   
   

(4
,7

80
,3

51
)

   
   

  
(2

13
,6

81
)

   
   

   
  

1,
32

9,
82

9
   

   
   

- 
- 

Ch
an

ge
s i

n 
Ne

t P
os

iti
on

(1
,2

96
,7

60
)

$ 
   

 
17

4,
58

3
$ 

  
   

 
(1

,0
45

,0
57

)
$ 

   
 

(5
,2

75
,9

26
)

$ 
   

 
6,

48
1,

90
5

$ 
   

  
(9

,9
67

,9
81

)
$ 

   
 

(4
06

,0
92

)
$ 

  
  

69
2,

18
5

$ 
  

   
 

4,
50

9,
64

1
$ 

  
 

7,
90

7,
64

8
$ 

  
 

S
ou

rc
e:

 R
ai

nb
ow

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ite
d 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

es
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

Ga
in

 (L
os

s)
 

fr
om

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

No
n-

op
er

at
in

g 
Re

ve
nu

e 
Le

ss
 

Ex
pe

ns
es

In
co

m
e 

Be
fo

re
 

Ca
pi

ta
l 

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

Ca
pi

ta
l 

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

Pr
io

r P
er

io
d 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t

Ch
an

ge
s i

n 
Ne

t 
Po

sit
io

n
20

12
33

,7
01

,6
32

$ 
   

 
35

,9
37

,7
09

$ 
   

 
(2

,2
36

,0
77

)
$ 

   
 

93
9,

31
7

$ 
  

   
 

(1
,2

96
,7

60
)

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
  

  
-

$ 
  

  
(1

,2
96

,7
60

)
$ 

   
 

20
13

37
,8

16
,8

58
   

   
 

38
,4

74
,0

72
   

   
 

(6
57

,2
14

)
   

   
   

  
83

1,
79

7
   

   
   

   
17

4,
58

3
   

   
   

   
- 

- 
17

4,
58

3
   

   
   

   
20

14
39

,7
96

,1
75

   
   

 
41

,5
63

,9
83

   
   

 
(1

,7
67

,8
08

)
   

   
 

72
2,

75
1

   
   

   
   

(1
,0

45
,0

57
)

   
   

  
- 

- 
(1

,0
45

,0
57

)
   

   
 

20
15

37
,2

28
,9

77
   

   
 

39
,1

67
,4

60
   

   
 

(1
,9

38
,4

83
)

   
   

 
53

6,
81

4
   

   
   

   
(1

,4
01

,6
69

)
   

   
  

29
4,

19
2

   
   

   
   

(4
,1

68
,4

49
)

   
   

  
(5

,2
75

,9
26

)
   

   
 

20
16

35
,2

29
,5

53
   

   
 

37
,6

56
,1

24
   

   
 

(2
,4

26
,5

71
)

   
   

 
92

4,
11

1
   

   
   

   
(1

,5
02

,4
60

)
   

   
  

1,
09

1,
51

5
   

   
   

6,
89

2,
85

0
   

   
   

6,
48

1,
90

5
   

   
   

20
17

36
,4

73
,1

49
   

   
 

40
,1

18
,0

54
   

   
 

(3
,6

44
,9

05
)

   
   

 
(1

,6
99

,0
27

)
   

   
  

(5
,3

43
,9

32
)

   
   

  
15

6,
30

2
   

   
   

   
(4

,7
80

,3
51

)
   

   
  

(9
,9

67
,9

81
)

   
   

 
20

18
41

,6
17

,7
24

   
   

 
45

,3
86

,9
76

   
   

 
(3

,7
69

,2
52

)
   

   
 

60
3,

87
8

   
   

   
   

(3
,1

65
,3

74
)

   
   

  
2,

97
2,

96
3

   
   

   
(2

13
,6

81
)

   
   

   
  

(4
06

,0
92

)
   

   
   

  
20

19
36

,5
15

,0
83

   
   

 
41

,8
01

,6
35

   
   

 
(5

,2
86

,5
52

)
   

   
 

1,
70

7,
81

7
   

   
   

(3
,5

78
,7

35
)

   
   

  
2,

94
1,

09
1

   
   

   
1,

32
9,

82
9

   
   

   
69

2,
18

5
   

   
   

   
20

20
36

,2
01

,2
43

   
   

 
44

,0
08

,4
13

   
   

 
(7

,8
07

,1
70

)
   

   
 

1,
07

6,
91

4
   

   
   

(6
,7

30
,2

56
)

   
   

  
11

,2
39

,8
97

   
   

 
- 

4,
50

9,
64

1
   

   
   

20
21

46
,0

47
,5

63
   

   
 

44
,8

89
,6

72
   

   
 

1,
15

7,
89

1
   

   
   

1,
94

5,
25

6
   

   
   

3,
10

3,
14

7
   

   
   

4,
80

4,
50

1
   

   
   

- 
7,

90
7,

64
8

   
   

   

S
ou

rc
e:

 R
ai

nb
ow

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ite
d 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts

SU
M

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
RE

VE
NU

ES
, E

XP
EN

SE
S,

 A
ND

 C
HA

NG
ES

 IN
 N

ET
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
La

st
 T

en
 F

isc
al

 Y
ea

rs

La
st

 T
en

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
rs

SU
M

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
RE

VE
NU

ES
, E

XP
EN

SE
S,

 A
ND

 C
HA

NG
ES

 IN
 N

ET
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

55
Page 87 of 129



Fiscal 
Year

Total 
Revenues

Total 
Expenses Gain (Loss) 

2012 34,767,151$     36,063,911$     (2,236,077)$     
2013 38,716,429       38,541,846       (657,214)           
2014 40,627,469       41,672,526       (1,767,808)        
2015 38,169,760       39,571,429       (1,938,483)        
2016 36,821,603       38,324,063       (2,426,571)        
2017 37,068,399       38,545,851       (3,644,905)        
2018 42,591,777       45,757,151       (3,769,252)        
2019 38,793,755       42,372,490       (5,286,552)        
2020 36,201,243       44,008,413       (7,807,170)        
2021 46,047,563       44,889,672       1,157,891         

Source: Rainbow Municipal Water District Audited Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $45,000,000

 $50,000,000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Revenue vs. Expenses

Total Revenues Total Expenses
Fiscal Year

56
Page 88 of 129

• • 



20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

es
:

W
at

er
 S

al
es

30
,1

52
,2

59
$ 

   
 

34
,5

05
,2

28
$ 

   
 

36
,4

97
,3

73
$ 

   
 

34
,0

37
,4

32
$ 

   
 

32
,1

56
,8

44
$ 

   
 

33
,0

91
,6

41
$ 

   
 

38
,1

05
,7

12
$ 

   
 

32
,8

10
,9

88
$ 

   
 

33
,1

56
,9

19
$ 

   
 

41
,7

79
,7

97
$ 

   
 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 R
ev

en
ue

2,
50

0,
80

3
   

   
   

2,
57

3,
27

3
   

   
   

2,
55

3,
80

1
   

   
   

2,
67

7,
13

0
   

   
   

2,
63

2,
90

2
   

   
   

2,
54

8,
64

7
   

   
   

2,
52

0,
62

2
   

   
   

2,
84

3,
25

6
   

   
   

2,
62

1,
43

3
   

   
   

3,
46

1,
25

6
   

   
   

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Re
ve

nu
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
1,

01
9

   
   

   
   

99
1,

39
0

   
   

   
   

86
0,

83
9

   
   

   
   

42
2,

89
1

   
   

   
   

80
6,

51
0

   
   

   
   

Gr
an

t R
ev

en
ue

19
3,

43
9

   
   

   
   

64
,4

47
   

   
   

   
  

34
,1

58
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ot
he

r
85

5,
13

1
   

   
   

   
67

3,
91

0
   

   
   

   
71

0,
84

3
   

   
   

   
51

4,
41

5
   

   
   

   
43

9,
80

7
   

   
   

   
33

1,
84

2
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Re
ve

nu
es

33
,7

01
,6

32
   

   
 

37
,8

16
,8

58
   

   
 

39
,7

96
,1

75
   

   
 

37
,2

28
,9

77
   

   
 

35
,2

29
,5

53
   

   
 

36
,4

73
,1

49
   

   
 

41
,6

17
,7

24
   

   
 

36
,5

15
,0

83
   

   
 

36
,2

01
,2

43
   

   
 

46
,0

47
,5

63
   

   
 

N
on

-o
pe

ra
tin

g 
Re

ve
nu

es
:

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

 R
ev

en
ue

82
5,

99
5

   
   

   
   

85
8,

88
4

   
   

   
   

83
1,

29
4

   
   

   
   

85
0,

80
2

   
   

   
   

87
0,

64
2

   
   

   
   

59
5,

25
0

   
   

   
   

61
6,

02
7

   
   

   
   

63
8,

53
9

   
   

   
   

65
3,

32
0

   
   

   
   

68
5,

56
2

   
   

   
   

In
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e
23

9,
52

4
   

   
   

   
40

,6
87

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
89

,9
81

   
   

   
   

  
72

1,
40

8
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

13
4,

11
8

   
   

   
84

1,
59

6
   

   
   

   
(3

5,
39

5)
   

   
   

   
 

Ot
he

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

8,
02

6
   

   
   

   
50

6,
01

5
   

   
   

   
28

5,
63

2
   

   
   

   
1,

86
6,

92
8

   
   

   
To

ta
l N

on
-o

pe
ra

tin
g 

Re
ve

nu
es

1,
06

5,
51

9
   

   
   

89
9,

57
1

   
   

   
   

83
1,

29
4

   
   

   
   

94
0,

78
3

   
   

   
   

1,
59

2,
05

0
   

   
   

59
5,

25
0

   
   

   
   

97
4,

05
3

   
   

   
   

2,
27

8,
67

2
   

   
   

1,
78

0,
54

8
   

   
   

2,
51

7,
09

5
   

   
   

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
34

,7
67

,1
51

$ 
   

38
,7

16
,4

29
$ 

   
40

,6
27

,4
69

$ 
   

38
,1

69
,7

60
$ 

   
36

,8
21

,6
03

$ 
   

37
,0

68
,3

99
$ 

   
42

,5
91

,7
77

$ 
   

38
,7

93
,7

55
$ 

   
37

,9
81

,7
91

$ 
   

48
,5

64
,6

58
$ 

   

So
ur

ce
: R

ai
nb

ow
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t A

ud
ite

d 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

RE
VE

N
UE

S 
BY

 S
O

UR
CE

La
st

 T
en

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
rs

57
Page 89 of 129



20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
:

W
at

er
 P

ur
ch

as
es

20
,6

55
,6

53
$ 

    
24

,3
46

,5
57

$ 
    

26
,6

49
,3

03
$ 

    
24

,5
32

,4
68

$ 
    

22
,3

81
,3

93
$ 

    
23

,2
82

,3
93

$ 
    

27
,0

40
,8

73
$ 

    
22

,4
49

,4
49

$ 
    

21
,9

17
,9

14
$ 

    
25

,9
16

,8
88

$ 
    

W
at

er
 P

um
pi

ng
61

3,
95

8
    

    
    

 
56

6,
44

3
    

    
    

 
3,

83
6,

82
5

    
    

 
3,

81
6,

91
5

    
    

 
63

1,
05

6
    

    
    

 
58

0,
55

6
    

    
    

 
59

1,
52

9
    

    
    

 
55

8,
98

9
    

    
    

 
53

0,
81

5
    

    
    

 
62

7,
68

1
    

    
    

 
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n 
an

d 
Di

st
rib

ut
io

n
4,

49
0,

43
5

    
    

 
3,

90
2,

69
9

    
    

 
1,

11
3,

72
1

    
    

 
1,

03
7,

42
0

    
    

 
4,

28
4,

98
1

    
    

 
4,

87
6,

96
0

    
    

 
4,

77
7,

96
4

    
    

 
4,

42
1,

57
1

    
    

 
Op

er
at

io
ns

1
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
2,

83
6,

40
4

    
    

 
2,

05
5,

70
4

    
    

 
Va

lv
e 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

1
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
52

2,
93

5
    

    
    

 
44

7,
29

5
    

    
    

 
Di

st
rib

ut
io

n1
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
2,

19
1,

71
2

    
    

 
2,

51
6,

85
5

    
    

 
M

et
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
87

2,
14

6
    

    
    

 
98

4,
32

7
    

    
    

 
76

8,
96

6
    

    
    

 
80

4,
14

0
    

    
    

 
1,

04
4,

63
1

    
    

 
1,

08
5,

55
3

    
    

 
1,

00
3,

89
9

    
    

 
86

8,
92

7
    

    
    

 
1,

89
3,

42
9

    
    

 
1,

19
0,

74
6

    
    

 
Se

w
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

76
4,

35
6

    
    

 
1,

61
3,

56
7

    
    

 
1,

76
3,

82
4

    
    

 
1,

70
8,

77
9

    
    

 
1,

56
6,

84
5

    
    

 
1,

73
5,

47
3

    
    

 
1,

64
6,

59
3

    
    

 
1,

73
8,

94
8

    
    

 
2,

26
8,

30
4

    
    

 
76

6,
63

7
    

    
    

 
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

an
d 

Ge
ne

ra
l

3,
23

2,
71

2
    

    
 

2,
06

2,
84

0
    

    
 

3,
98

7,
68

7
    

    
 

3,
92

4,
31

1
    

    
 

2,
68

3,
65

8
    

    
 

2,
85

5,
62

3
    

    
 

4,
27

2,
24

6
    

    
 

4,
46

7,
52

1
    

    
 

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n2
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
3,

27
7,

17
8

    
    

 
2,

04
8,

90
7

    
    

 
Ga

ra
ge

2
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
54

4,
45

1
    

    
    

 
50

0,
12

7
    

    
    

 
Hu

m
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
2

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

29
8,

77
6

    
    

    
 

34
4,

37
4

    
    

    
 

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t2

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

45
5,

28
8

    
    

    
 

96
0,

80
9

    
    

    
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
3

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

95
4,

15
1

    
    

    
 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s2
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
23

,3
36

    
    

    
   

16
,8

43
    

    
    

   
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
78

0,
74

4
    

    
    

 
90

6,
02

6
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
    

    
    

  
24

,3
64

    
    

    
   

99
9,

84
4

    
    

    
 

1,
27

9,
19

4
    

    
 

1,
25

4,
29

3
    

    
 

1,
55

1,
50

6
    

    
 

1,
00

5,
43

7
    

    
 

1,
62

4,
80

1
    

    
 

Fi
na

nc
e

47
4,

86
9

    
    

    
 

58
0,

94
1

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

61
2,

80
0

    
    

    
 

54
5,

97
6

    
    

    
 

60
1,

32
2

    
    

    
 

56
8,

09
1

    
    

    
 

63
2,

45
6

    
    

    
 

80
7,

35
2

    
    

    
 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vi
ce

31
8,

76
8

    
    

    
 

44
8,

08
8

    
    

    
 

14
8,

43
8

    
    

    
 

81
6

    
    

    
    

    
 

33
9,

94
8

    
    

    
 

43
0,

85
0

    
    

    
 

54
9,

82
2

    
    

    
 

1,
51

9,
98

4
    

    
 

71
8,

06
6

    
    

    
 

70
1,

14
8

    
    

    
 

De
pr

ec
ia

tio
n

2,
73

4,
06

8
    

    
 

3,
06

2,
58

4
    

    
 

3,
29

5,
21

9
    

    
 

3,
31

8,
24

7
    

    
 

3,
11

0,
96

8
    

    
 

3,
44

5,
47

6
    

    
 

3,
64

8,
43

5
    

    
 

3,
65

6,
64

9
    

    
 

2,
18

9,
06

8
    

    
 

2,
32

7,
66

3
    

    
 

Ot
he

r O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

e
2,

70
2,

84
4

    
    

 
1,

08
1,

69
1

    
    

 
To

ta
l O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

35
,9

37
,7

09
   

   
 

38
,4

74
,0

72
   

   
 

41
,5

63
,9

83
    

   
39

,1
67

,4
60

   
   

 
37

,6
56

,1
24

   
   

 
40

,1
18

,0
54

   
   

 
45

,3
86

,9
76

    
   

41
,8

01
,6

35
   

   
 

44
,0

08
,4

13
   

   
 

44
,8

89
,6

72
    

   

N
on

-o
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
:

In
te

re
st

12
6,

20
2

    
    

    
 

67
,7

74
    

    
    

   
10

8,
54

3
    

    
    

 
40

3,
96

9
    

    
    

 
66

7,
93

9
    

    
    

 
36

1,
03

7
    

    
    

 
37

0,
17

5
    

    
    

 
57

0,
85

5
    

    
    

 
70

3,
63

4
    

    
    

 
57

1,
83

9
    

    
    

 
Lo

ss
 o

n 
Ab

an
do

nm
en

t o
f C

ap
ita

l A
ss

et
s

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

(1
,9

33
,2

40
)

    
    

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

-
    

    
    

    
    

    
  

To
ta

l N
on

-o
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
12

6,
20

2
    

    
    

 
67

,7
74

    
    

    
   

10
8,

54
3

    
    

    
 

40
3,

96
9

    
    

    
 

66
7,

93
9

    
    

    
 

(1
,5

72
,2

03
)

   
   

  
37

0,
17

5
    

    
    

 
57

0,
85

5
    

    
    

 
70

3,
63

4
    

    
    

 
57

1,
83

9
    

    
    

 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s
36

,0
63

,9
11

$ 
    

38
,5

41
,8

46
$ 

    
41

,6
72

,5
26

$ 
    

39
,5

71
,4

29
$ 

    
38

,3
24

,0
63

$ 
    

38
,5

45
,8

51
$ 

    
45

,7
57

,1
51

$ 
    

42
,3

72
,4

90
$ 

    
44

,7
12

,0
47

$ 
    

45
,4

61
,5

11
$ 

    

So
ur

ce
: R

ai
nb

ow
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t A

ud
it

ed
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

Fo
ot

no
te

s:
1 Pr

io
r 

to
 F

Y
 2

02
0 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n.

2 Pr
io

r 
to

 F
Y

 2
02

0 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
an

d 
G

en
er

al
.

3 Pr
io

r 
to

 F
Y

 2
02

1 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
an

d 
G

en
er

al
.

La
st

 T
en

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
rs

EX
PE

N
SE

S 
BY

 F
UN

CT
IO

N

W
at

er
 P

ur
ch

as
es

57
%

W
at

er
 P

um
pi

ng
1%

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
5%

Va
lv

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
1%

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n

6%

M
et

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

3%

Se
w

er
 

Se
rv

ic
es

2%

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n2
5%Ga

ra
ge

1%

Hu
m

an
 

Re
so

ur
ce

s
1%

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

2%

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
2%

Bo
ar

d 
of

 
Di

re
ct

or
s

0% En
gi

ne
er

in
g

4%
Fi

na
nc

e
2%

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vi
ce

2%
De

pr
ec

ia
tio

n
5%

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
e

2%
In

te
re

st
1%

Ex
pe

ns
e 

by
 F

un
ct

io
n

58
Page 90 of 129



20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

To
ta

l A
ss

es
se

d 
Va

lu
e

3,
55

7,
00

9,
60

4
$ 

  
3,

61
4,

67
0,

55
0

$ 
  

3,
81

7,
37

1,
32

6
$ 

  
4,

00
3,

57
8,

48
8

$ 
  

4,
18

5,
85

7,
09

0
$ 

  
4,

38
7,

41
7,

36
2

$ 
  

4,
66

0,
29

5,
70

4
$ 

  
4,

99
4,

38
1,

00
1

$ 
  

5,
28

3,
54

9,
08

9
$ 

  
5,

53
9,

57
9,

11
2

$ 
  

Co
nv

er
sio

n 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

25
%

25
%

25
%

25
%

25
%

25
%

25
%

25
%

25
%

25
%

Ad
ju

st
ed

 A
ss

es
se

d 
Va

lu
at

io
n

88
9,

25
2,

40
1

$ 
   

  
90

3,
66

7,
63

8
$ 

   
  

95
4,

34
2,

83
2

$ 
   

  
1,

00
0,

89
4,

62
2

$ 
  

1,
04

6,
46

4,
27

3
$ 

  
1,

09
6,

85
4,

34
1

$ 
  

1,
16

5,
07

3,
92

6
$ 

  
1,

24
8,

59
5,

25
0

$ 
  

1,
32

0,
88

7,
27

2
$ 

  
1,

38
4,

89
4,

77
8

$ 
  

De
bt

 Li
m

it 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

15
%

15
%

15
%

15
%

15
%

15
%

15
%

15
%

15
%

15
%

Le
ga

l D
eb

t L
im

it
13

3,
38

7,
86

0
$ 

   
  

13
5,

55
0,

14
6

$ 
   

  
14

3,
15

1,
42

5
$ 

   
  

15
0,

13
4,

19
3

$ 
   

  
15

6,
96

9,
64

1
$ 

   
  

16
4,

52
8,

15
1

$ 
   

  
17

4,
76

1,
08

9
$ 

   
  

18
7,

28
9,

28
8

$ 
   

  
19

8,
13

3,
09

1
$ 

   
  

20
7,

73
4,

21
7

$ 
   

  
Ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
De

bt
14

,1
35

,1
86

   
   

   
  

17
,9

78
,1

29
   

   
   

  
17

,6
15

,4
46

   
   

   
  

16
,8

75
,5

44
   

   
   

  
16

,1
19

,9
68

   
   

   
  

15
,3

48
,4

93
   

   
   

  
14

,1
60

,7
36

   
   

   
  

21
,1

71
,5

53
   

   
   

  
Le

ss
: A

m
ou

nt
 R

es
er

ve
d 

fo
r D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
1,

12
9,

68
3

   
   

   
   

 
9,

12
4,

09
4

   
   

   
   

 
   

  N
et

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 Li
m

it
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

,1
35

,1
86

   
   

   
  

17
,9

78
,1

29
   

   
   

  
17

,6
15

,4
46

   
   

   
  

16
,8

75
,5

44
   

   
   

  
16

,1
19

,9
68

   
   

   
  

15
,3

48
,4

93
   

   
   

  
13

,0
31

,0
53

   
   

   
  

12
,0

47
,4

59
   

   
   

  
Le

ga
l D

eb
t M

ar
gi

n
13

3,
38

7,
86

0
$ 

   
  

13
5,

55
0,

14
6

$ 
   

  
12

9,
01

6,
23

8
$ 

   
  

13
2,

15
6,

06
4

$ 
   

  
13

9,
35

4,
19

4
$ 

   
  

14
7,

65
2,

60
7

$ 
   

  
15

8,
64

1,
12

1
$ 

   
  

17
1,

94
0,

79
5

$ 
   

  
18

5,
10

2,
03

8
$ 

   
  

19
5,

68
6,

75
8

$ 
   

  

To
ta

l D
eb

t a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

lim
it 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f d

eb
t l

im
it

0%
0%

10
%

12
%

11
%

10
%

9%
8%

7%
6%

La
st

 T
en

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
rs

CO
M

PU
TA

TI
ON

 O
F 

LE
GA

L D
EB

T 
M

AR
GI

N

No
te

:T
he

Go
ve

rn
m

en
tC

od
e

of
th

e
St

at
e

of
Ca

lif
or

ni
a

pr
ov

id
es

fo
ra

le
ga

ld
eb

tl
im

it
of

15
%

of
gr

os
sa

ss
es

se
d

va
lu

at
io

n.
Ho

w
ev

er
,t

hi
sp

ro
vi

sio
n

w
as

en
ac

te
d

w
he

n
as

se
ss

ed
va

lu
at

io
n

w
as

ba
se

d
up

on
25

%
of

m
ar

ke
tv

al
ue

.E
ffe

ct
iv

e
w

ith
th

e
19

81
-8

2
fis

ca
ly

ea
r,

ea
ch

pa
rc

el
is

no
w

as
se

ss
ed

at
10

0%
of

m
ar

ke
tv

al
ue

(a
s

of
th

e
m

os
tr

ec
en

tc
ha

ng
e

in
ow

ne
rs

hi
p

fo
rt

ha
tp

ar
ce

l).
Th

e
co

m
pu

ta
tio

ns
sh

ow
n

ab
ov

e,
re

fle
ct

a
co

nv
er

sio
n

of
as

se
ss

ed
va

lu
at

io
n

da
ta

fo
re

ac
h

fis
ca

l
ye

ar
 fr

om
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t f
ul

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv

e,
 to

 th
e 

25
%

 le
ve

l t
ha

t w
as

 in
 e

ffe
ct

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

th
at

 th
e 

le
ga

l d
eb

t m
ar

gi
n 

w
as

 e
na

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

St
at

e 
of

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 fo

r l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

st
at

e.

59
Page 91 of 129



Assessed Value

Percent 
Increase/ 
Decrease Tax Collected

2012 3,557,009,604$     -1.04% 518,935$     
2013 3,614,670,550       1.62% 537,832 
2014 3,817,371,326       5.61% 545,556 
2015 4,003,578,488       4.88% 555,940 
2016 4,185,857,090       4.55% 526,292 
2017 4,387,417,362       4.82% 595,250 
2018 4,660,295,704       6.22% 616,027 
2019 4,994,381,001       7.17% 641,868 
2020 5,283,549,089       5.79% 661,209 
2021 5,539,579,112       4.85% 685,566 

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Total Assessed Value

60
Page 92 of 129



20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

Ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 w

/R
es

id
en

ce
4,

30
2

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

62
4

62
4

76
9

63
6

63
7

79
1

Ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 w

/o
 R

es
id

en
ce

n/
a

2,
63

6
2,

70
8

2,
29

5
2,

80
4

2,
71

7
2,

88
6

2,
23

3
2,

34
3

2,
44

6
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
1,

86
1

1,
87

9
1,

97
0

2,
00

3
57

1
62

9
84

5
79

1
74

5
86

7
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
69

12
45

64
10

4
94

15
8

11
8

37
24

9
In

st
itu

tio
na

l
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
65

62
52

63
43

64
M

ul
ti-

Fa
m

ily
26

2
32

0
36

7
33

2
25

4
26

7
28

4
28

8
28

0
33

3
PS

AW
R 

Co
m

m
er

cia
l

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

35
9

PS
AW

R 
Do

m
es

tic
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
45

7
TS

AW
R 

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

3,
43

3
4,

64
2

4,
78

4
4,

18
9

3,
23

9
3,

26
8

3,
73

1
2,

72
6

2,
48

6
2,

73
6

TS
AW

R 
Do

m
es

tic
4,

26
1

6,
33

5
6,

50
8

5,
82

3
4,

74
3

4,
53

0
5,

29
2

3,
68

1
3,

41
0

3,
70

4
Si

ng
le

 F
am

ily
 

4,
21

0
4,

50
9

4,
84

6
4,

22
4

3,
15

4
3,

42
8

3,
90

0
3,

23
6

3,
26

6
3,

95
8

To
ta

l C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
18

,3
98

20
,3

33
21

,2
27

18
,9

29
15

,5
58

15
,6

20
17

,9
17

13
,7

71
13

,2
47

15
,9

64
TS

AW
R-

Tr
an

sit
io

na
l S

pe
cia

l A
gr

icu
ltu

re
 W

at
er

 R
at

e

Ac
re

 F
ee

t
La

st
 T

en
 F

isc
al

 Y
ea

rs
CO

N
SU

M
PT

IO
N

 B
Y 

CU
ST

O
M

ER
 C

LA
SS

Ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 w

/R
es

id
en

ce
5%

Ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 w

/o
 R

es
id

en
ce

15
%

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

6%
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
2%

In
st

itu
tio

na
l

0%
M

ul
ti-

Fa
m

ily
2%

PS
AW

R 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
2%

PS
AW

R 
Do

m
es

tic
3%

TS
AW

R 
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
17

%

TS
AW

R 
Do

m
es

tic
23

%

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 
25

%

CO
NS

UM
PT

IO
N 

BY
 C

US
TO

M
ER

 C
LA

SS

TS
AW

R-
Tr

an
sit

io
na

l S
pe

cia
l A

gr
icu

ltu
re

 W
at

er
 R

at
e

PS
AW

R-
Pe

rm
an

en
t S

pe
cia

l A
gr

icu
ltu

re
 W

at
er

 R
at

e

61
Page 93 of 129



CUSTOMER ANNUAL USAGE PERCENTAGE
TREESAP FARMS, LLC 234,492 3.37%
GILLIGAN GROVES 217,650 3.13%
SYCAMORE RANCH GOLF INC 74,518 1.07%
RICK & GAYLE MARROCCO 68,234 0.98%
PINNICK INC 65,509 0.94%
LYNN E. TRENDEL 62,240 0.90%
DONALD & DEBBIE DABBS 45,456 0.65%
FERRUCCI PROPERTIES LLC 27,993 0.40%
HELENE BECK 27,552 0.40%
RICHARD BONNER 26,096 0.38%

TOTAL COMBINED WATER CONSUMPTION 849,740 12.22%
ALL OTHER WATER CONSUMPTION 6,103,761 87.78%
TOTAL WATER CONSUMPTION 6,953,501 100.00%

TOP TEN WATER CONSUMERS
Fiscal Year 2021

TREESAP FARMS, LLC
28%

GILLIGAN GROVES
26%

SYCAMORE RANCH GOLF INC
9%

RICK & GAYLE MARROCCO
8%

PINNICK INC
8%

LYNN E. TRENDEL
7%

DONALD & DEBBIE DABBS
5%

FERRUCCI PROPERTIES LLC
3%

HELENE BECK
3%

RICHARD BONNER
3%

TOP TEN WATER CUSTOMERS AND THEIR RELATIVE CONSUMPTION FISCAL YEAR 
2021

62
Page 94 of 129



CUSTOMER ANNUAL USAGE PERCENTAGE
HINES NURSERIES 137,930 2.18%
MOON VALLEY NURSERY 75,827 1.20%
SYCAMORE RANCH GOLF INC 58,351 0.92%
WRK LLC 46,887 0.74%
GOMEZ CREEK RANCH 37,962 0.60%
DONNIE & DEBBIE DABBS 35,563 0.56%
JOAN & ALAN WILLIAMS 30,921 0.49%
FRANK WHITE 28,297 0.45%
MILAGRO RANCH 25,644 0.41%
OCEAN BREEZE RANCH LLC 25,637 0.41%

TOTAL COMBINED WATER CONSUMPTION 503,019 7.96%
ALL OTHER WATER CONSUMPTION 5,813,109 92.04%
TOTAL WATER CONSUMPTION 6,316,128 100.00%

TOP TEN WATER CONSUMERS
Fiscal Year 2009

HINES NURSERIES
27%

MOON VALLEY NURSERY
15%

SYCAMORE RANCH 
GOLF INC

12%

WRK LLC
9%

GOMEZ CREEK RANCH
8%

DONNIE & DEBBIE 
DABBS

7%

JOAN & ALAN WILLIAMS
6%

FRANK WHITE
6%

MILAGRO RANCH
5%

OCEAN BREEZE RANCH 
LLC
5%

TOP TEN WATER CUSTOMERS AND THEIR RELATIVE 
CONSUMPTION FISCAL YEAR 2009

63
Page 95 of 129

L_---=----_-_-_-= ===--_ -_ -_ -:!!:====--==--+ +_ -_ -_ -=-=
----=====~E=====t===== L----======f=====t===== --= ===--_ -_-_-::tr==--==--_ ~+-r--_ -==--
1-------=======f=====-=t===--=-=--: --= ===--_ -_ -_ -==::rI==--==-+--- 1 
1 ___ =----1 __ _ 

l 



W
at

er
 V

ar
ia

bl
e 

Ra
te

s2

M
ul

ti 
Fa

m
ily

Co
m

m
er

cia
l

In
st

itu
tio

na
l

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

Ti
er

 1
Ti

er
 2

Ti
er

 3
20

12
2.

55
2.

60
2.

6
2.

55
/2

.6
2.

55
n/

a
2.

60
20

13
2.

95
3.

00
3.

00
2.

95
/3

.0
0

2.
95

n/
a

3.
00

20
14

3.
00

3.
15

3.
15

3.
00

/3
.1

5
3.

00
/3

.1
5

n/
a

3.
15

20
15

3.
00

3.
15

3.
15

3.
00

/3
.1

5
3.

15
n/

a
3.

15
20

16
3.

31
3.

48
3.

81
3.

40
3.

51
3.

58
3.

51
20

17
3.

42
3.

60
3.

94
3.

52
3.

63
3.

70
4.

44
20

18
3.

64
3.

86
4.

27
3.

76
3.

89
3.

98
4.

87
20

19
3.

73
3.

99
4.

48
3.

87
4.

03
4.

14
5.

20
20

20
3.

73
3.

99
4.

48
3.

87
4.

03
4.

14
5.

20
20

21
3.

89
4.

15
4.

64
4.

03
4.

19
4.

19
5.

36
Ag

ric
ul

tu
re

 w
/o

 
Re

sid
en

ce
TS

AW
R1 

Co
m

m
er

cia
l

Ti
er

 1
Ti

er
 2

Ti
er

 3
Ti

er
 1

Ti
er

 2
Ti

er
 3

20
12

2.
60

2.
60

2.
60

2.
43

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

20
13

2.
95

3.
00

2.
72

2.
43

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

20
14

3.
00

3.
15

2.
83

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

20
15

3.
00

3.
15

3.
15

n/
a

3.
00

3.
15

2.
83

2.
83

20
16

3.
31

3.
48

3.
24

3.
24

3.
31

3.
48

2.
77

2.
77

20
17

3.
42

3.
60

3.
35

3.
35

3.
42

3.
60

2.
87

2.
87

20
18

3.
64

3.
86

3.
56

3.
56

3.
7

3.
92

3.
04

3.
04

20
19

3.
73

3.
99

3.
63

3.
63

3.
94

4.
21

3.
15

3.
15

20
20

3.
73

3.
99

3.
63

3.
63

3.
94

4.
21

3.
15

3.
15

20
21

3.
89

4.
15

3.
79

3.
79

4.
14

4.
41

3.
35

3.
35

1 TS
AW

R-
Tr

an
sit

io
na

l S
pe

cia
l A

gr
icu

ltu
re

 W
at

er
 R

at
e

2 1 
un

it 
of

 w
at

er
 =

 7
48

 g
al

lo
ns

W
at

er
 F

ix
ed

 R
at

es

Ca
pa

cit
y 

Cl
as

s-
M

et
er

 S
ize A-
5/

8"
B-

3/
4"

C-
1"

D-
1 

1/
2"

E-
2"

F-
3"

G-
4"

H-
6"

20
12

54
.6

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

63
.3

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

88
.3

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
8.

67
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

0.
58

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

38
6.

42
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

4.
05

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
27

6.
37

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

13
62

.2
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

.9
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0.
44

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
1.

33
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

9.
85

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
4.

39
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
77

4.
89

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
54

8.
24

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

14
58

.8
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

.9
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
94

.8
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

2.
34

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
2.

54
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

7.
01

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

84
2.

16
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

69
9.

84
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
15

58
.8

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

65
.9

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

94
.8

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
2.

34
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

2.
99

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
7.

01
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
84

2.
16

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
69

9.
84

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

16
58

.8
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
58

.8
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

.5
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

7.
39

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
7.

57
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
64

6.
47

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
16

0.
65

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

39
1.

02
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
17

61
.1

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

61
.1

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

99
.3

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
4.

85
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

9.
45

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

67
2.

36
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

20
7.

19
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
48

6.
94

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

18
61

.4
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
61

.4
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
99

.3
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

4.
12

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
7.

82
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
66

7.
85

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
19

8.
46

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

46
8.

09
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
19

65
.5

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

65
.5

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
5.

59
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

5.
62

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
5.

67
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

5.
81

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
26

6.
04

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

60
6.

55
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
20

65
.5

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

65
.5

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
5.

59
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

5.
62

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
5.

67
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

5.
81

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
26

6.
04

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

60
6.

55
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
21

67
.0

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

67
.0

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
8.

14
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

0.
72

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

33
3.

83
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
72

3.
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
29

8.
17

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

67
2.

85
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

RA
TE

 S
UM

M
AR

IE
S

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l

Ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 w

/R
es

id
en

ce
TS

AW
R1  D

om
es

tic

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

, M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

, C
om

m
er

cia
l, 

&
 In

st
itu

tio
na

l

64
Page 96 of 129



Ca
pa

cit
y 

Cl
as

s-
M

et
er

 S
ize A-
5/

8"
B-

3/
4"

C-
1"

D-
1 

1/
2"

E-
2"

F-
3"

G-
4"

H-
6"

20
12

48
.1

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

56
.8

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

77
.9

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
9.

22
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

6.
86

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
8.

07
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
55

0.
31

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
04

2.
93

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

13
49

.7
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
58

.4
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

.4
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

3.
78

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
4.

76
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
34

1.
74

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

57
4.

61
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

09
7.

61
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
14

44
.5

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

51
.6

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

71
.9

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
9.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

8.
12

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
8.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
61

3.
16

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
18

4.
59

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

15
44

.5
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
51

.6
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
71

.9
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

9.
40

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
8.

12
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

8.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

61
3.

16
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

18
4.

59
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
16

78
.2

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

78
.2

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
7.

96
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

2.
19

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
1.

24
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
87

3.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
56

8.
86

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

23
3.

34
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
17

81
.0

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

81
.0

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
2.

53
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

1.
23

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

41
5.

66
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
90

4.
69

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
62

5.
39

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

34
9.

88
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
18

85
.3

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

85
.3

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
9.

18
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

3.
77

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

43
5.

27
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
94

6.
65

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
70

0.
30

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

50
3.

62
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
19

94
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

94
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
3.

36
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

1.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

47
8.

61
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

04
0.

37
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
86

8.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

84
9.

18
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
20

94
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

94
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
3.

36
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

1.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

47
8.

61
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

04
0.

37
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
86

8.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

84
9.

18
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
21

95
.7

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

95
.7

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
5.

91
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

6.
30

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
6.

77
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

05
8.

22
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
90

0.
38

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

91
5.

48
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ca
pa

cit
y 

Cl
as

s-
M

et
er

 S
ize A-
5/

8"
B-

3/
4"

C-
1"

D-
1 

1/
2"

E-
2"

F-
3"

G-
4"

H-
6"

20
12

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

20
13

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

20
14

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

20
15

58
.8

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

65
.9

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

94
.8

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
2.

34
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

5.
94

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
4.

14
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
44

5.
94

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

69
4.

04
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

16
60

.3
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

.3
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
98

.0
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

2.
28

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
5.

39
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
66

3.
57

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
19

1.
44

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

45
4.

53
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
17

61
.3

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

61
.3

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

99
.7

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
5.

59
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
31

0.
64

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

67
4.

94
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

21
1.

84
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
49

6.
52

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

18
68

.0
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
68

.0
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

0.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
5.

89
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
34

2.
67

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

74
4.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

33
5.

70
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
75

1.
27

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

19
77

.3
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
77

.3
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

5.
21

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
4.

89
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
38

8.
52

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

84
3.

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

51
3.

53
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
11

7.
21

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

20
77

.3
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
77

.3
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

5.
21

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
4.

89
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
38

8.
52

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

84
3.

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

51
3.

53
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
11

7.
21

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

21
78

.4
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

.4
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

6.
96

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
8.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
39

4.
13

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

85
5.

57
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

53
5.

61
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
16

2.
78

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1 TS

AW
R-

Tr
an

sit
io

na
l S

pe
cia

l A
gr

icu
ltu

re
 W

at
er

 R
at

e

Se
w

er
 R

at
es

 p
er

 D
w

el
lin

g 
Un

it
Si

ng
le

 F
am

ily
  

M
ul

ti 
Fa

m
ily

Se
w

er
 O

nl
y

Co
m

m
er

cia
l

20
12

25
.7

6-
68

.5
4

25
.7

6-
68

.5
4

25
.7

6-
68

.5
4

68
.5

4
20

13
25

.7
6-

68
.5

4
25

.7
6-

68
.5

4
25

.7
6-

68
.5

4
68

.5
4

20
14

28
.7

0-
75

.5
0

28
.7

0-
75

.5
0

28
.7

0-
75

.5
0

75
.5

0
20

15
28

.7
-7

5.
50

28
.7

-7
5.

50
28

.7
-7

5.
50

75
.5

0
20

16
28

.7
-7

5.
50

28
.7

-7
5.

50
28

.7
-7

5.
50

75
.5

0
20

17
28

.7
-7

5.
50

28
.7

-7
5.

50
28

.7
-7

5.
50

75
.5

0
20

18
55

.0
7

40
.5

1
54

.4
0

40
.5

1
20

19
55

.0
7

40
.5

1
54

.4
0

40
.5

1
20

20
55

.0
7

40
.5

1
54

.4
0

40
.5

1
20

21
55

.0
7

40
.5

1
54

.4
0

40
.5

1

RA
TE

 S
UM

M
AR

IE
S

TS
AW

R1

Ag
ric

ul
tu

re

65
Page 97 of 129



66
Page 98 of 129



Employers
# of 

Employees
Bonsall Unified School District 123
Rainbow Municipal Water District 57
Vallecitor School District 30
Pala Mesa Resort 20
Z Café 15
Daniel's Market 10
Armstrong Growers less than 10
West Coast Tomatoe Growers less than 10
Rainbow Oaks Restaurant less than 10
Pala Mesa Market less than 10
Village Pizza less than 10
Tekila Cocina less than 10
Fresco Grill less than 10
Jack in the Box less than 10
Subway less than 10
McDonalds less than 10
Cortez Mexican less than 10
Quality Inn less than 10
Nessy Burget less than 10
Fallbrook Rib Shack less than 10
Randy Carlson DMD less than 10
North County Fire less than 10

Top 10 Employers

67
Page 99 of 129



20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
3

3
3

3
3

3
4

3
2

2
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

4
4

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

3
3

3
2

3
2

2
2.

5
2.

5
2.

5
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
5.

5
5.

5
5.

5
5.

5
5.

5
5.

5
5.

5
6.

5
5

6
Fi

na
nc

e
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

3
5

6
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vi

ce
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

5
5

4
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 S
up

po
rt

5
5

5
3

5
5

5
4.

5
3

2
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

11
.5

10
.5

10
.5

9.
5

10
.5

10
.5

10
.5

9
9

9
W

as
te

w
at

er
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
&

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

9
9

9
8

9
9

9
9

10
10

M
et

er
s

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
9

8
8

To
ta

l
52

51
51

46
51

50
51

57
.5

57
.5

57
.5

Le
ss

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
3

3
To

ta
l P

er
m

an
en

t E
m

pl
oy

ee
s

52
51

51
46

51
50

51
54

.5
54

.5
54

.5

La
st

 T
en

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
rs

FU
LL

-T
IM

E 
EQ

UI
VA

LE
N

T 
EM

PL
O

YE
ES

 B
Y 

DE
PA

TM
EN

T

68
Page 100 of 129



69
Page 101 of 129

······················· 
••• ... ····················· .. . . •• •• .. ... 



70
Page 102 of 129

San Diego .Area Economic Summary 
Updated Ootober 1 1l, 202.1 

Thi:S summary 1Pres,ents a sa mpling ,of economic information for t hle area; supp!ernenta l data a r,e provided for regions. 
and the na1tiorn. Subjects irnclude l!m employment, ,em'l:iloyment, wage.s, p:rices, spellilding, and belilefits, All data ar,e no 
seasona lly· adjusted andl some may be subject to revision. Area cfefirnitliorns may differ by subject. fo r more ar,ea 
summaries, andl geogiraphic d'efirnitions, s,ee W\'A'J.bls,gov{re,gio:ns,lecornomic-summariies.ntm. 

Un employmen,1t rates for t hle natiorn andl s,eleded 
areas 

Unemp oymem: rat! s 

Un itedl State:s 

car ornia 
12 . .3 

San Diego, Colfnty 
10.8 

San ego city 
l!0.6 

Carlsbad city 
9.7 

Oceanside city 
11!..8 

15.0 

■ALrg-20 ■Au.g-21 
source: U.S. 111.S, l.oali Are u n=plb',I enl SI 1ii~1ics. 

Average weekily wages for a ll irndust ries by counb,• 
San li!liego met ro ar,ea, fim q□:arter .2_021 

[U.S..= $ 1,289; Ar,ea =-$1,430] 

s.in 0 1eao 

$ 1 ,43□ 

So ,,,.,: U.S.. IBl'S, 1Q.i,amerly Ce ' "" ,i,f IEmpla 'ITTlent - d ;,c,. 

0ver-t hle--year ,charnges. in employment om nonfarm payrolls arnd employment by major industry sector 

1!5.0 

10.0 

5.0 

0.0 

-5 .. 0 

12-month peroe1u: ,dlllanges: In, employment San Diego metrn atl!a employml!!nt I ~ Aug.~ 
,[n limber in thotisands] 

-10 .. 0 

-1!5.0 

-20.0 
Aug-18 Au g-19 Aug-20 ALr;g-21 

- San Diego m etro, area ...... ~ Unit ed St ates 
Sourne: U.!i. Bts, cu ErnptO')ment st 1iistiics. 

Tota I n.o nfarm 

Mining ml I ogging 

COO&trlll'Ctl 00 

Manufac:turi lli!: 

Trade. tr ns por t i on, n,d 111il li tl es 

!!!5 

Pro ss I Oll,il I and buslness .se1v l c:es 

Ed'ue,a tl on n.d he Ith .sentl ees 

~su re nd hospJta I I b;' 

other services 

ll,ll-1173 

0.3 

903 

11"!.6 

20!!5 

22.6 

71.9 

249.7 

H U! 

16~.6 

49.ll 

GoYernment 224.9 

Source: U.S. B15, OLJ rent Empl oyment sta1il.5 es . 

U.S. BUREAU O F LABO R STATIST ICS • b is .g o v I O @BLS_gov 

59 .2 4 .4 

0 .0 OD 

g _g, 10.9' 

0 ./l OA 

u 0..6 

u 5..6 

-1.!!, -2A 

6 . .1 2.5 

5 .3 2..6 

H .O 23.2 

9 .7 M..6 

-2.!! -U 

II 

II 



71
Page 103 of 129

Over-trne-ye,rr ,change iin th e prices paid by urba11 
consumers f,or s,elected categories 

12,m,ontih 1perc:en,t ch n~e 11'n1 C:PI-U, JUiy' 2021 

35.0 

30.0 

25.0 

20.0 

15.0 

10.0 

5.0 

0.0 

23.8 

All -em s Food E,nergy 
■ Sar1 Diego, metro area ■ U.S. c- average 

source:. u.s. BLS_. cons.Jl'l'I P l nde:t. 

Aver.age anmJl,al spendiing andl per,ceint d:istribu1Jionr 
for s,elected categories 

Avera; annual eiiipendituri s, U:nited States and 

100'ilf. 

80% 

60% 

40% 

209' 

0% 

San Di~;o area, :2018-191 

lll!i 

■Hea th.ca e 
■ Per so I lm 1Jrance & nsloms 
■ od 
■ rans;po alfon 
■ Hous l 

Source: U.S. BL.S, COimJl'l'l o, r upeMit.ure Sur,,.;y_ 

Employeir rnsts 1per hou r wori:!edl for wages. and 
seled edl e mployee benefits by geo~raprnic division 

Private in-dustr;o, I West cencsus I I.Jnlted 
June 2021 regjion States 

ota I oompenSeatio11 $40.74 $36.64 

W ages and salaries 2.8 .75 2.5.89 

1rot a benefits 11 .99 10 .76 

Paid ave .Hl7 2..70 

Va:cation 1.55 us 
S1.1pplemel'ltal pay uo l.25 

tn:suraoce 3.11 2.79 

!teti remel'lt an d :sav i11.1rs. 1.::14 1.25 

e. a I re u i red be!'lefits .3 .1.i l.7'1 

OVer-the-year changes in the selling prices received by 
produoers. for se1lededl indlust ries nationwide 

25!0 
20!0 
15!0 
10!0 

5J0 
OJO 

-5!0 
-10!0 
-15!0 
-20!0 
-25!0 

12.-mont:lil perioent ,C:lilangH In PPI 

Aug-18 Aug-1!9 A.ug-20 
· ruding - - - • Gener I frei 

- • Hospit als 

- Hotels texi:: casino ot els)an:d motels 

Souirre: U.S. RL.S , l'l'Olioce,r Pri lnile'J(. 

Average hourly wages. for seleded ,occu1patiorns 

Aug-21 

I San Dl~go I U nlted 
Occ-upatlon 

mett10 ai-ea Sta~ll 
All ocrnpatiiollS $30 .91 

IH l!m1alil resou rces managers 66 .47 

l~gis en!d lill!lrse.s '53 .66 

Accomrtan s am:I au d it o rs 43 .llll 

IBlecbi:ci a.115 301.22 

Co11Structio n laborers 23.8 7 

IH o el, motet a.nd resort tlesk de,nks 1 '5 .60 

Soura,: U.S.. I Occupa11 0.na l mpl.,.,..,,.,,,1 and W:,ge St:>l:ls11 cs, May 2020. 

Over-th e-year changes in wages and salaries. 

4 .5 

4 .0 

3.5 

3.0 

2.5 

2.0 

1.5 
1 .0 

0 .5 

0.0 
Jun-18 

12,montilil 1perc:enrt chan~e.s. In ea 

Jun-191 Jun-20 

$17 .07 

64 .71] 

38 .47 

39 .26 

29 .'59 

21l .67 

12 .93 

Jun,-21!. 

- West. census regior1 - - -- •· Unit ed States 

SO!.I - u.s_ BLS, Ernpto,,me11t CO!it lnde:i:. 

western lafor mat ionr offic,e • BLSinfo!SF@b'ls.gov· •· l'lttps:l/www!bls.g:011/r,e,gioas/west • 4l!5-625-ZZ7,D• 

-lS 



72
Page 104 of 129



73
Page 105 of 129

t 

76 

otborne St 

Oliv A111 

eons II 0e, R~ 

~ 

i \ 
-oi 
- \,_, Old 

> 
\ 
\ '·-·-, :----···-··"-•----·,~ 

; I , .. _, .. ,.; eadow 

N 

A 
Legend 

c:] District Boundary 

0 15,000 
-----=====iFeet 

7,500 



74
Page 106 of 129

Commun ty/Subre1ional 
Plannl,_ Are■ Boundary 

1111 lncorpora!ed 
011H 

UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES WITHIN COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

C 

c::::::::J 8 



75
Page 107 of 129

0 Mymap 

• Laye, 

■ iii 333243. -U7l627 
■ 33 3243. -U71627 
■ 333243. -1171627 

AnDheim ~ 
0 

O"l('ge 

@ Santa Ano 
0 

Hundngtgn Beach Irvine 
0 

Llkt For , 
0 

@ Mlssl~ Viejo 

Laguna Beach ;; 

(!) 

@m, 0 
f:im <!> 
am, 0 

<Sh 

_, 
San Clemente 

0 

Palm ~prngs 

--

--

j 



76
Page 108 of 129

• The Ra!nbOw property is In the SANDAG North County East 
Major Statistical Area (MSA 5). To estimate future demand 
for the land uses being evaluated for the Rainbow property 
we are uUliZlng SANDAG's SR13 forecasts for population 
and hOusing unit growth and SANDAG's upcoming SR14 
preliminaiy forecasts for job growlh. 

• For inronnation on supply and demand trends for retail. 
office, industrial and multi-family uses, we are utllizing data 
from the commercial data provider costar. The costar 
submartcets that most closely match with the SANDAG North 
County East MSA include four areas (which we are 
conectlvely referring to as the · InIand North" market): 

, 26 - Outlying SD county North 
13 - Escondido 

,,. 33 - san Marcos 
, 36-Vista 

The SANDAG and costar areas do not 100% align. The 
pfimaiy difference between the costar Inland North 
submartcet and the SANDAG North County East MSA is that 
the costar area includes the community or Ramona. while 
SANDAG does not. The population of Ramona is only abOut 
20K and represents only abOut 4% of the 460K population in 
the SANDAG North County East MSA (480K if Ramona is 
added). We have conduded that the aggregate costar 
Inland North and SANDAG North county East MSA areas 
are similar enough for our analytical purposes. 

• Costar submartcet bOundarles can vary for different land 
uses, particularly for Multi-Family. Costar submartcet maps 
are provided for each use at the beginning or each section of 
the report for that particular use. 

... , ......... "-• , __ ......... , 
I .. ., 

SANDAG MAJOR 
STATISTICAL AREAS 

,urco TY 



77
Page 109 of 129

Population growth from 2020 to 2035 in the county is projected at about 27 .9K per year. 

• Occupied housing unit growth from 2020 to 2035 Is projected at about 9.9K per year (SF 1.8K per year, MF 8.1 K per year). 

POPU ATIO AN D HO SING 
201 <o 0S0C honoo' 

To it. a t P opu 11:1 c. • on 

H " "...,h Q l d P o 11 u l 1o1U 11 

.roup Oun , t .. ,"' Ptl l :JU lll"II Lt n 

C ivll l o n 

11 , t::i r y 

To t o l H o u :1 1nq Un1 t :s 

S1 n g 10 Fom 11 y 

u l t l p.u. F ;;11 ml y 

o l, d r Ho m ... 

0 · u o• ~"' H .. no Un, , 
S in a l c f o mll y 

u l t. 1p o F cam y 

ob i o Hom cu: 

u l t • P.,. F n m•l y 

o l, 1 tt Ho n1 r 

Pc. r :,.on:s p or ll o1.1~at,o ld 

20 
3 14 3,429 
3 0 . 37 

10 .492 
61.597 
4 ,895 

1 .165,818 
703.101 
42 ,147 

42.5 /0 

1 10 .0 4 
672.496 
391,534 

39,004 

5 4% 
4 4% 

8% 
8 4~ 

2.76 

2020 
3 435, 713 

. 25 71 
1 8 
68.103 
41 895 

1 249,684 
731 693 
477 2 8 

40.7 3 

1 178. 1 
697 .41 

43 13 
37 46 

5.7% 
4 7% 
7 1% 
8.0'7o 

2.82 

035 
3,853 698 

,7 8 
115. 50 

73.755 
4 ,895 

1. 2 .44 
730.471 
560,793 

35,18 

4 9% 
.7% 
.210 

8.4 i'O 

2.82 

2050 
4,068,759 

1 .491,935 
763, 26 
92. 70 

6.000 

1 ,407 . 
730.020 
645,548 

32.301 

5.6% 
4 4% 

8% 
10 3% 

2.8 1 

925,330 
09 7 
1 152 
16 15 

3 6,11 7 
60 25 

272 5 2 
6 570 

04.8 
57 .5 4 
54,0 14 
-6 703 

02 
00 
0.0 
1 9 

0.1 

Sou,.,.: SA DAG SR13 Reg"'" GR>w1h For..:.ast. nttuse<! .n 2013. TM lorec.3st 11 ,,, 1M _ .. of M.ng ui,d3tt<I with MW tttonatH 10 be ~v~ila~ by the end of 
2020 {SR14). Aocording to SANOAG. lht' new foll!¢nl numben for popu oon 3nd housing units Me not .xpeete<! 10 be ,.ub,un 31yd lfHffltlhan tor.e.ut in SR13. 

P a r c o n i.. 

29% 
0% 

1 % 
6% 
0 9{, 

28% 
9% 
r. % 

15% 

28% 
9% 

65% 
-17% 

4% 
0% 
0% 

23% 

2% 



78
Page 110 of 129

Population growth from 2020 to 2035 in MSA 5 is projected at about 4.0K per year. 

Occupied hOusing unit growth from 2020 to 2035 is projected at about 1.3K per year (SF 664 per year, MF 634 per year). 

MSA 5 currently represents 14% or the counlywlde population and 13% of the countywide supply of housing units. 

POPULATION AND HOUSING 
012 <o osoc .. . nQ o · 

T ot ■ I opu l t1 0 

ll o u ::t chol d Poo u lot o n 

cf' up O uo1 ,r ... r Pop f..a L , ~ n 

C,v1 h o n 

M 1u '- ill t"Y 

Tot.al li e u:ung Un,t::t 

S,no 1" f,,rn 11 y 

M u oupto F <>m ll y 

Occ up1 a d llouo(; t nq Un i t e: 

1ng 1 .. f tt,n ,l ,y 

M u 1up l e F a mll y 

M o b l o H om o > 

Vo11 c: u,,c. y R.1LN 

S ,nq to F om ,t y 

Mu, i pl f'I f amil y 
M o o 1,0 H omo~ 

2012 
438.503 
432.566 

5. 7 
5.937 

0 

148,823 
6.104 

40,869 
11.850 

142,516 
9 .001 
8. 87 

10.828 

4.2% 
3.2% 

.3% 
8.6% 

.011 

2020 
487 700 
482.109 

r: _591 
5,591 

0 

163 ,09 
703. 48 
48.064 
11. 8 

155,935 
99.720 

5,507 
10.708 

44% 
3.5% 
:). % 
8.3% 

.o 

2035 
547 ,881 
5 1.229 

6, 52 
6,65 

0 

181,744 
112, 1 
57.514 
11.611 

17 5.276 
10 . 0 

5.0 8 
10,578 

% 
6% 

43% 
8.9% 

.o 

2050 
573 2 5 
565.889 

/ ,40 
7.406 

0 

191.439 
11 5,14 
64.837 
11 459 

4 0% 
3.1% 
4. 4% 

10.9% 

.08 

134. 792 
133.323 

1.46 
1, 469 

0 

42.616 
1 .03 

3,968 
1 

41.242 
18. 
23. 0 

-616 

-0 2 
-0.l 
09 
2.3 

00 
T 

Source; SA.NDAG SR 13 Reg;on,1 Growth Fore-ca., releJ.s.d in 2013. TIM, fort-CJSI Is in 1M process ol i,.ing upd>ted witl> MW HtimJles to i,. av3J3t,le by 1M - of 
2020 {SR14). A000<<1lnv to S DAG. ll>e MW forwc.ntnumbffs for population and housing units • noaxpe-cted to i,. subsl.lntulydfffffflt ~n foreo.ut in SR 13. 

p.., , ,..,. t. 

31% 
31% 
25% 
25% 
0% 

29% 
20% 
59% 

3% 

29% 
20% 
60% 
-6% 

-% 
-3% 
1 /% 
27% 

1% 



 
 
 

  
 

 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

203 N. Brea Blvd., Suite 203 Brea, CA 92821 Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP Phone: 714.672.0022 

October 31, 2021 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Rainbow Municipal Water District 
Fallbrook, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Rainbow Municipal Water District (the District) for the year 
ended June 30, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the 
Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We 
have communicated such information in our letter to you dated April 22, 2021. Professional standards also 
require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings and Other Issues 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the District are described in the notes to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during fiscal 
year 2020-2021. We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a 
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the 
financial statements in the proper period 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the District’s financial statements were: 
 

Management’s estimates of its net pension liability and total other post-employment 
benefits liability are based on actuarial valuation specialist assumptions. We evaluated the 
key factors and assumptions used to develop the net pension liability and total other  
post-employment benefits liability to determining that they are reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 
 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Significant Unusual Transactions 
 
Management is responsible for the policies and practices used to account for significant unusual 
transactions.  No significant unusual transactions have occurred during fiscal year 2020-2021. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit.

Page 111 of 129

Ls~ .... •••• •• 

~ PrimeGlobal 
,1nAmx:im/,m(Jj 

lr1dep=k11tAc:umr1ti11q Firm~ 



 
To the Board of Directors 
Rainbow Municipal Water District 
Fallbrook, California 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a 
result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or 
the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our 
audit. 
 
Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report 
 
New auditing standards were implemented in fiscal year 2020-2021 related to Statement of Auditing 
Standards 134, Auditor Reporting and Amendments, Including Amendments Addressing Disclosures in the 
Audit of Financial Statements.  This standard updated the form and content of the financial statement 
auditor’s report.  The purpose of the change was to present an easier format for users to understand the 
results of the audit and management’s responsibilities. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 31, 2021. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues Discussed with Management 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the significant events or transactions that occurred 
during the year, business conditions affecting the District and business plans and strategies that may affect 
the risks of material misstatements, the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with 
management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in 
the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.   
 

Page 112 of 129

Ls~ .... •••• •• 



 
To the Board of Directors 
Rainbow Municipal Water District 
Fallbrook, California 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of 
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the schedule of plan contributions, and the schedule of 
changes in the total other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability which are required supplementary 
information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
We were not engaged to report on the introductory and statistical sections of the financial report, which 
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
New Accounting Standards 
 
The following new Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements were effective for 
fiscal year 2020-2021 audit: 
 

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. 
 
GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - an Amendment of GASB Statement Nos. 14 
and 61. 
 
GASB Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. 
 

The following GASB pronouncements are effective in the following fiscal years’ audits and should be 
reviewed for proper implementation by management: 

 
Fiscal year 2022 

 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. 
 
GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period. 
 

Fiscal year 2023 
 
GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. 
 
GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangement. 
 
GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. 
 

Page 113 of 129

Ls~ .... •••• •• 



 
To the Board of Directors 
Rainbow Municipal Water District 
Fallbrook, California 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the District and 
is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Brea, California 
 

Page 114 of 129

Ls~ .... •••• •• 



 
 
 

  
 

 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

203 N. Brea Blvd., Suite 203 Brea, CA 92821 Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP Phone: 714.672.0022 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
To the Board of Directors 
Rainbow Municipal Water District 
Fallbrook, California  
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States  
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Rainbow Municipal 
Water District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated October 31, 2021. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under  
Government Auditing Standards. 
 

Page 115 of 129

Ls~ .... •••• •• 

~ PrimeGlobal 
,1nAmx:im/,m(Jj 

lr1dep=k11tAc:umr1ti11q Firm~ 



 
To the Board of Directors 
Rainbow Municipal Water District 
Fallbrook, California 
 

 

Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Brea, California 
October 31, 2021 
 
 

Page 116 of 129

Ls~ .... •••• •• 



 
 
 

  
 

 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

203 N. Brea Blvd., Suite 203 Brea, CA 92821 Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP Phone: 714.672.0022 

Mr. Tom Kennedy and Ms. Tracy Largent 
Rainbow Municipal Water District 
Fallbrook, California 
 
Dear Mr. Kennedy and Ms. Largent: 
 
We have completed our audit of the Rainbow Municipal Water District (the District)’s operations as part of 
our audit for fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.  During the course of our auditing procedures, we identified 
certain matters, which we would like to bring to your attention.  These matters were not serious enough to 
report on the Report on Internal Control letter, dated October 31, 2021.  These matters are not considered 
a reportable deficiency, but rather, an opportunity for improvement and strengthening of the District’s 
internal controls. 

 
Restrict Posting Transactions Directly to Net Position (Equity) 

 
During the audit, we noted that certain capital contribution transactions were posted directly 
to net position (fund equity) accounts. These revenue transactions should have been 
posted to appropriate revenue account, capital contributions. The amount was $52,564 this 
year and after discussion with Ms. Largent, management reclassified the contributed 
capital to the appropriate capacity fees accounts.  The District should establish a policy to 
restrict posting transactions directly to net position. Direct adjustments to net position 
accounts are only permissible for corrections of an error and implementation of changes in 
accounting principles.  We also recommend that the Finance Manager review the net 
position account activity each month to ensure that the accounts only have appropriate 
entries. 

 
Update the Purchasing Manual and Communicate the Changes 

 
We noted that the existing purchasing procedures manual does not currently include a 
segment discussing conflicts of interest and ethical practices in purchasing. We 
recommend that the District update its purchasing manual to include this information. Any 
changes in the purchasing manual, as well as existing, related internal controls, should be 
documented, and communicated to all affected persons. Internal controls cannot work 
unless employees are aware of them. 

 
The above matters have been discussed during our audit exit meetings with the Finance Department on 
June 4, 2021 and September 10, 2021.  Should any questions arise about the District’s operations or the 
comments above, we will be available for discussion.  
 

 
Brea, California  
October 31, 2021 

Page 117 of 129

Ls~ .... •••• •• 

~ PrimeGlobal 
,1nAmx:im/,m(Jj 

lr1dep=k11tAc:umr1ti11q Firm~ 





        BOARD ACTION 
 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
December 7, 2021 

 
 
SUBJECT 

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE A VARIANCE FROM ORDINANCE 21-03 TO 
ALLOW A LOT, LARGER THAN 0.5 ACRES, TO QUALIFY FOR CAPACITY CLASS B ¾” METER AND 
APPROVE THE CAPACITY CLASS WATER USE AGREEMENT (Division 3) 
 
 
BACKGROUND 

The District identifies specific rate classes under District Ordinance No. 21-03 that are assigned to 
parcels according to meter size. Meter sizes are recommended based on lot size and water usage. The 
district board has determined criteria that allows customers to apply for variances from the assigned rate 
class provided that the parcel does not exceed the maximum units for the lower meter size being 
requested.  
 
District staff has determined that a reasonable amount of time to assess usage is 12 months. For a 
parcel to move to a 3/4” rate class they should not exceed 50 units (one unit equals one hundred cubic 
feet [“CCF”]) of water use per month on average, for any 12- month period, based on the 12-month 
rolling average (month determined by scheduled meter reading cycle). According to Ordinance 21-03 
which states “Lot size less than 21,780 sqft (0.5 acres) may qualify for a 3⁄4 inch meter.”   
 
The property owner of APN 124-396-01-00, Dany Jensen, has requested a variance from Ordinance 21-
03 to downsize an existing 1” meter on a 1.38 acre parcel to a 3⁄4 inch meter and reduce his monthly 
fixed fees. According to the attached variance application (See Attachment 1), the customer has 
changed out many sprinklers with drip systems and will continue to refine. The rolling 12 - month 
average for the property is 62.42 units per month, which is over the required 50 units. 
 
 
DESCRIPTION 

The capacity charges were developed by Wildan and Raftelis through a comprehensive study and 
analysis of the value of District assets and the maximum day use patterns of existing customers with 
particular meter sizes. The reference meter size for capacity class B is 3⁄4-inch. According to the Raftelis 
analysis, the maximum allowable usage for capacity class B is 50 units (one unit equals one hundred 
cubic feet [“CCF”]) per month, or 1.38 AF/yr. The lot size requirement was included in the ordinance to 
protect the District from customers over using their intended capacity.  
 
The staff will draft an agreement, with Board authorization, whereby District will suspend the requirement 
to pay Fixed Charges beyond those applicable to capacity class B under District Ordinance No. 21-03 
provided that the Parcel does not exceed a maximum of 50 units of water use per month on average, for 
any 12-month period, based on the 12-month rolling average (month determined by scheduled meter 
reading cycle). The agreement further stipulates the following to ensure the customer will be held 
accountable to comply with the purpose of Ordinance No. 21-03. In the event the Parcel exceeds a 
maximum of 50 units of water use per month on average, for any 12- month period, based on the 12-
month rolling average, District will notify the Owner of the exceedance. Within 3 months from the date of 

Page 118 of 129



the notice, the Owner shall bring the Parcel’s average monthly water use, based on the 12-month rolling 
average, below 50 units per month. In the event Owner does not bring the Parcel’s average monthly 
water use, based on the 12- month rolling average, below 50 units per month within the 3 months 
immediately following the date of the notice, the Owner shall become obligated to pay District the 
additional water Capacity Fees, then in affect, corresponding with the capacity class that matches the 
Parcel’s use over the 12-month period. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A Variance Request 
 
 
POLICY/STRATEGIC PLAN KEY FOCUS AREA 

Strategic Focus Area Five: Customer Service. This type of agreement allows the Board to fit the requests 
of an individual customer based on their specific use patterns which fall outside the expectations covered 
by the existing policy. 
 
 
BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS 

If the Board approves the variance, the customer will save $45.53 per month (assuming Single Family 
Residential rate) in monthly service charges to Rainbow MWD unless they exceed the intended capacity 
of 50 units/month.  

1) Approve the variance to Ordinance 21-03 to allow a property larger than 0.5 acres to qualify for 
capacity class B and approve the New Water Service Agreement.  

2) Deny the variance request. 
3) Provide other direction to staff. 

 
  
ENVIRONMENTAL 

 
In accordance with CEQA guidelines Section 15378, the action before the Board does not constitute a 
“project” as defined by CEQA and further environmental review is not required at this time. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends Option 2.  
 
 
 
 

   

Tracy Largent, CPA 
Finance Manager 

December 7, 2021 

 

Page 119 of 129



Page 120 of 129

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE VARIANCE APPLICATION 

PROPERTY OWNER OR PRIMARY ACCOUNT HOLDER INFORMATION 
Owner Name: ~ 0 _ Telephone No.: 

VAN 0t:/JScN LJ-oB ·-85B-2L.f1D 

Email Address: • Account No.: 

r1<0L1-1=1<aLLE123 e L, V6- , Lt]tvJ 015Lf31-()oo 
LOCATION OF PROPOSED ADMINISTRATIVE CODE VARIANCE 

Address: l •--;-;> ~ /1,., APN: Acres: 

3&93 j\.J6-T7lE rL1:J-c-r;- ff/llf5~{)k--/--/-l 92-02-B 12.t./- "390 tJJ d() /, 38 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

Specific section(s) of the Adm in. Code for which this variance is being requested (attach additional pages if needecf): 

201}l{.CQ~t-J -fwwt CL-As.s C, I u M 8b12. TD A Wss 5 ~/1.f:1 

flllETBil. 
' 

Reason why the variance should be approved including how the intent of the Adm in. Code will be met (attach additional 
pages if necessary): 

oue /VlotJn-11..L,1 A-VGi UQ\c;i;- i'o <,-, l,3 u,vLT-S (tJEWw 17t-& ~~11Zc7) BajE 
' ) , . ' . 

lu @ ~ v t::R~ L,Af2/4 e: 1 µC(Ze;J'\S € 1 t-J D Uii!_ SE"J/f 6/ LL w mo,+ td b 

~ 'S Tl LL ]2 is: <-l -r1 t,)_ f,_ • iJJ b /lrsJ 1= U-\f\-N C el) Z) I.ff M ML(7Pll1 ,0 o/1.S 
w 1--n+ -:De:1p 21<;-r(!M< fy-JD t-J1 Le arJDJ-Ju E n ?Eb Ne. uJE 

- L-L- ·13 E D rJ h x eD 110 CDYvl E -:5 t-l-nTiu A-rJ I tU4 -s--1 eT ·Trt-i; 
11 - x E])ir C()<;-rs 'E-ET> UU:::7) . !t+E o J&L $1 W {[) , 

gfu[l<Z' v0{;- EU - uS E o & l) U) ~ ~ , W~ VD ND, Hf\V-E 
--s, f i2-- I i'-i tC::::.LbLS, 1 /\.l f -- +I-owl 6 , T> i-EV\;S € t:-+E t.=p L,{_~ 1 ~ L--f ft f P QD v I t; 
Rainbow Municipal Water District (District) Provisions: 'Z) u_ f!_ ~~ L(_ 8S T. "Tt+-Yt-fJ ~' Lj 1J t(_ 

The purpose of a variance is to provide flexibility in application of regulations necessary to achieve the purposes of the 
Administrative Code. A variance is intended to resolve practical difficulties or unnecessary physical hardships that may 
result from strict adherence to the policies contained in the Administrative Code. The cost to the applicant of strict 
adherence with any provision of the Administrative Code shall not be the sole reason for granting a variance. This 
application is subject to the approval of the District Board of Directors. 

ID /4 /2.,o ,2.-) 
7 Date I 

3707 Old Highway 395 • Fallbrook, CA 92028 
Phone: (760) 728-1178 • Fax: (760) 728-2575 • www.rainbowmwd.com 

IIRMVVD-8\Main\Engineering\Confidential'D2_Forms\Variance\20181003-VarianceApplication.doc 





Page 121 of 129

District use only: APP# In 4 rz,\ .. 

METER DOWNSIZE REQUEST 

Date: IO/;~/ 2o2--J Account No. () I 5 ~ ~7- - DOD 
V@Nj JeJSE/\1 PhoneNo.: LfQ8 -858 -~2tfo/o 

(Please Print) ,.--
Name: 

Service Address: 3&58 N ETTL£ PLl::}-c~) h4 l.-LJ3(Zoo)c.) ~ 02tJ2-8 
Billing Address: ~-

Complete Downsize Meter Information (one request per meter): 

From: To: 

_f~pacity Cl~-~~~- Ref. Size: Caoacitv Class: Ref. Size: Accessor's Parcel Number: 

(!__ I 
,, 

B ":YLJ-'' 12L/-- 3CJ& 

Capacity Classes=Ref. Sizes: A= 5/8", 8=3/4", C=1 ", 0=1.5", E=2", F=3" 

Indicate the reason for downsizing the existing water meter(s) Please circle one: 

[j) Not using as much water 

0/ 00 

b. Agricultural Operations suspended _ - ' · _ . _ 
(S) Other(Describe) ~ll/2- ;/JTE}JT lS TD ?lc;,1~1f-rcr1~1 LI /!.EDl<LE ~ll.£__ vJ;4Tb?ll, 
?iS Ac; r; tJ U. r2._ Cl,( 12./Zh/JT / 0 1//// o, lh/C . IS v- 03 u AJ ;-r:5 - 1,u 6- A-£6- SOO.>--J VVlOv'I ;Jc; 

l , . C 1l --t-,,. 
-,v A r0 ><-6v I AJC.of'Vle fhtJ D e1uarr 6~-c -r 1H~ F1 x ElJ w ·14--7Ff!- fc;U 0!:l,r,ltekv, 

The District will review the water usage history to determine if a smaller meter is capable of meeting the water 
usage demands and meet Capacity Class requirements. Please note - If you downsize to smaller than a 1-
inch meter, you may not meet fire flow requirements. In addition, services within high- or low-pressure areas 
will be required to sign and record a Notice of High or Low Water Pressure Condition. 

If needed, the customer agrees to install a pressure regulator on their side of the meter and agrees to install 
at his/her cost a booster system to be owned, operated and maintained by the Owner/Agent, his/her 
successors and assigns. 

When approval is granted by the District Engineer for the meter capacity class downsize, the owner 
will be required to sign/notarize a Meter Downsize Agreement. 

BY SIGNING BELOW, THE APPLICANT DECLARES UNDER PENAL TY OF PERJURY AS FOLLOWS: 

1. I have the following legal authority to request meter downsizing as set forth above: 
~ I am the legal owner of the parcel(s) subject to this request and have attached proof of ownership. 
□ I am an authorized agent of the owner of the parcel(s) subject to this request and have attached 

proof of such authorization hereto. 

2. I will immediately notify the Finance Manager of the District if any of the following occur at any point 
prior to completion of the meter downsizing: (a) I cease to have authority to request meter downsizing; 
(b) there is a change in ownership of the parcel(s) subject to this request; or (c) there is a change in 
control of water service under Chapter 8.04 of the Administrative Code. 

3707 Old Highway 395 • Fallbrook, CA 92028 
Phone: (760) 728-1178 • Fax: (760) 728-2575 • www.rainbowmwd.com 

Nolumes'main/Finance/Groui>-Engineering/Meter Tasks-Fonns'NEW- DS and removal formS/Do.vnsizeMeterRequest _Jul2020.docx 



Page 122 of 129

3. I acknowledge that this request is subject to and approval is conditioned on compliance with District 
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the District's Administrative Code, including those provisions 
governing the size, number and location of service connections, governing who may request a 
connection and governing the terms of transfer. 

4. I acknowledge that, if in the future a larger water meter is required due to higher water usage, I will be 
required to pay all-past District Operations and Maintenance fees starting from the effective date of 
the Meter Downsize Agreement through the effective date of the signing of the Meter Upsize 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

5. I acknowledge that in the event the District determines that downsizing is not appropriate, I am 
responsible for bringing the account current by paying all unpaid fees assigned to the account and 
hereby agree to make any such payments. 

6. I acknowledge that to the extent downsizing results in unused capacity, the District's obligation to 
recognize such unused capacity, if any, is subject to change and that I may not have a right to such 
unused capacity in the future. Chapter 8.11 of the Administrative Code. 

7. In the event the District incurs any costs or suffers any damage as a result of any misrepresentation, 
any failure to notify the District of a change in authority to request meter downsizing, a change in 
ownership of the parcel(s) subject to this request, or a change in control of water service under 
Chapter 8.04 of the Administrative Code, or in the event this request is determined to be improper for 
any reason, I understand and agree that I will be solely responsible for, and will defend and indemnify 
the District from any such costs and damages, including but not limited to the District's reasonable 
attorney's fees. 

8. I acknowledge that the District has the right to refuse or to discontinue water service at any time to 
protect the District from any fraud or for noncompliance with or violation of any ordinance or rule or 
regulation of the District arising from this request. 

OWNER/ AUTHORIZED AGENT: 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT ONLY: 

Approved: D Yes D No 

Date: ___,/'--D-1-'-// k?;,,:;......i. &~h-==1--/ __ 
' I 

Comments: ___________________________ _ 

Date Finance Manager 

2 



Page 123 of 129

SECURED TAX BILL 

IIII Ill I I lllll 111111111111111 
CURRENT 
OWNER JENSEN LIVING TRUST 02-28-12 

SPECIAL 
M ESSACES 

8 

3658 NETTLE PL 
FALLBROOK CA 92028 

57144 

2021-2022 

a, 1:,"'. ,. · '. -· "i' vouR TAX DISTRIBUTION 1(7-_,.• ' •. •·,_ ." . ·.: . . . 
AGENCY."·',·~:-::::-:,,;,;__,-,- :.j RATE/ CONTACT# TAX AMOUNT 

1% TAX ON NET VALUE VOTER APPROVED BONDS AND UNIFIED SCHOOL 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
METRO WATER DISTRICT TOTAL ON NET VALUE FIXED CHARGE ASSMTS: 

1 . 00000 
TAXES: 
NET 0.02402 
NET 0.01944 
NET 0.00350 

1.04696 

8265.13 

198.53 
160 . 68 
28.92 

8653.26 

7.00 
2.28 
8 . 36 

For Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2021 and Ending June 30, 2022 

03658 NETTLE PL 

PAR A 

. I I • 

RECORO OF SURVEY 16264 

. . . : . • 

Q MAP NO. 0 DESCRIPTION VALUES & EXE~PTION 
RS16264 

8 DOCUMENT NO. 

24634~ 

4357.56 + 4357.56 = 
~ YOUR TAX DISTRIBUTION 

409966 
416547 
826513 

8715 . 12 

AGENCY RATE/ CONTACT# TAX AMOUNT 

TOTAL AMOUNT . 8715.12 

SD CO ST LTG ZONE A MOSQUITO SURVEILLANCE VECTOR DISEASE CTRL 0 WATER AVAIL I.D . #1 ~ MWD WTR STANDBY CHRG 

PHONE# 
866-807-6864 
800-273-5167 
800-273-5167 
760-728-1178 
866-807-6864 
858-522-6691 

14.54 
15.88 
13.80 

~ CWA WTR AVAILABILITY 
"' N 

:::::============---.:::_-_-_ -_;reiETACFf HEFfe·"I..- -- _- _- _-:_- _- _-.:..-.:..-:.- _- _- _- _- _- _- _- _- _~_- _- _- _- _- _- _- _-:,_-:.,~_-.:..- :...-.:..- _-:..-:..-:..-_-:.-.;...-.o-'E'"'TA"'c;.;H-;-,;HERE-C::~======:::.===~!::::::I TO PAY 2nd INSTALLMENT SEND THIS STUB WITH YOUR PAYMENT WRITE YOUR PARCEL NO. ON YOUR CHECK 
PLEASE SEPARATi: AND INCLUDE BOTH STUBS IF PAYING BOTH INSTALLMENTS 

16) . .... :u •-••••J. 17-•:•.•·•··· =- · • 1=-•-

124 396 01 00 

~II Ill 111111111111111 1111111 

uENSEN LIVING TRUST 02-28-12 
3658 NETTLE PL 
FALLBROOK CA 92028 

57144 

ST23 

1e•-• ~ ... !,_ l••••J 19] f tllJ~ • J.!'lilll ::I " 20■ • •... 
02-01 - 22 04-10-22 

VQJt, ~ 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY 

TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 

e-Pay at sdttc. om 

SDTTC 
P.O. Box 129009 

San Diego, California 92112 

·-· 
SECURED PROPERTY TAX 

For Fiscal Year 07/01/21 - 06/30/22 fJ 
21 - •••• •••!Ie,.• :::: • r.• 1 l ::C ~ ■---.a•a1 1 ~.,_ lt■ 

8715.12 

AMOUNT DUE FEB. 1 

LATE PAYMENT AFTER APRIL 10 

1 s 4803.31 1 

□ 2 □□□ 435756124396 □ 1 □□ 2 □□□ 435756124396 □ 1 □ 035 rlrl 

u: TO PAY 1st INSTALLMENT SEND THIS STUB WITH YOUR PAYMENT WRITE YOUR PARCEL NO. ON YOUR c1-11=r1< SECURED PRMPCDTVT•V -





Page 124 of 129

Reading Date Reading Usage Billable 

10/15/202111:37 515 44 44 
9/17 /202110:52 471 143 143 

8/12/2021 7:16 328 87 87 
7/19/2021 7:53 241 104 104 
6/14/2021 7:59 137 79 79 

5/17 /202110:41 58 58 58 
4/26/2021 0:00 6427 60 19 

3/8/2021 9:34 6367 19 19 
2/18/2021 9:49 6348 23 23 

1/12/202114:07 6325 26 26 
12/7/2020 10:39 6299 37 37 

11/12/2020 15:04 6262 69 69 
12 Mo. Average: 62.41667 





        BOARD ACTION 
 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
December 7, 2021 

 
 
SUBJECT 

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE A VARIANCE FROM ORDINANCE 21-03 TO 
ALLOW A LOT, LARGER THAN 0.5 ACRES, TO QUALIFY FOR CAPACITY CLASS B, 3/4” METER 
AND APPROVE THE CAPACITY CLASS WATER USE AGREEMENT (Division 5) 
 
 
BACKGROUND 

The District identifies specific rate classes under District Ordinance No. 21-03 that are assigned to 
parcels according to meter size. Meter sizes are recommended based on lot size and water usage. The 
district board has determined criteria that allows customers to apply for variances from the assigned rate 
class provided that the parcel does not exceed the maximum units for the lower meter size being 
requested.  
 
District staff has determined that a reasonable amount of time to assess usage is 12 months. For a 
parcel to move to a 3/4” rate class they should not exceed 50 units (one unit equals one hundred cubic 
feet [“CCF”]) of water use per month on average, for any 12- month period, based on the 12-month 
rolling average (month determined by scheduled meter reading cycle). According to Ordinance 21-03 
which states “Lot size less than 21,780 sqft (0.5 acres) may qualify for a 3⁄4 inch meter.”  
 
The property owner of APN 109-233-10-00, William McEneaney, has requested a variance from 
Ordinance 21-03 to downsize an existing 1.5” meter on a 11.92 acre parcel to a 3⁄4- inch meter and 
reduce his monthly fixed fees. According to the attached variance application (See Attachment 1), the 
parcel is vacant and has no future plans for building or agricultural usage. The rolling 12 - month 
average for the property is 0 units per month, which is well below the required 50 units or less. 
 
 
DESCRIPTION 

The capacity charges were developed by Wildan and Raftelis through a comprehensive study and 
analysis of the value of District assets and the maximum day use patterns of existing customers with 
particular meter sizes. The reference meter size for capacity class B is 3⁄4-inch. According to the Raftelis 
analysis, the maximum allowable usage for capacity class B is 50 units (one unit equals one hundred 
cubic feet [“CCF”]) per month, or 1.38 AF/yr. The lot size requirement was included in the ordinance to 
protect the District from customers over using their intended capacity.  
 
The staff will draft an agreement, with Board authorization, whereby District will suspend the requirement 
to pay Fixed Charges beyond those applicable to capacity class B under District Ordinance No. 21-03 
provided that the Parcel does not exceed a maximum of 50 units of water use per month on average, for 
any 12-month period, based on the 12-month rolling average (month determined by scheduled meter 
reading cycle). The agreement further stipulates the following to ensure the customer will be held 
accountable to comply with the purpose of Ordinance No. 21-03. In the event the Parcel exceeds a 
maximum of 50 units of water use per month on average, for any 12- month period, based on the 12-
month rolling average, District will notify the Owner of the exceedance. Within 3 months from the date of 

Page 125 of 129



the notice, the Owner shall bring the Parcel’s average monthly water use, based on the 12-month rolling 
average, below 50 units per month. In the event Owner does not bring the Parcel’s average monthly 
water use, based on the 12- month rolling average, below 50 units per month within the 3 months 
immediately following the date of the notice, the Owner shall become obligated to pay District the 
additional water Capacity Fees, then in affect, corresponding with the capacity class that matches the 
Parcel’s use over the 12-month period. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A Variance Request 
 
 
POLICY/STRATEGIC PLAN KEY FOCUS AREA 

Strategic Focus Area Five: Customer Service. This type of agreement allows the Board to fit the requests 
of an individual customer based on their specific use patterns which fall outside the expectations covered 
by the existing policy. 
 
 
BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS 

If the Board approves the variance, the customer will save $159.34 per month (assuming Commercial 
rate) in monthly service charges to Rainbow MWD unless they exceed the intended capacity of 50 
units/month.  

1) Approve the variance to Ordinance 21-03 to allow a property larger than 0.5 acres to qualify for 
capacity class B and approve the New Water Service Agreement.  

2) Provide other direction to staff. 
 
  
ENVIRONMENTAL 

 
In accordance with CEQA guidelines Section 15378, the action before the Board does not constitute a 
“project” as defined by CEQA and further environmental review is not required at this time. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends Option 1. 
 
 
 
 

   

Tracy Largent, CPA 
Finance Manager 

December 7, 2021 

 

Page 126 of 129



Page 127 of 129

R. AINBOW 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

Committed to Excellence 

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE VARIANCE APPLICATION 

PROPERTY OWNER OR PRIMARY ACCOUNT HOLDER INFORMATION 
Owner Name: William McEneaney Telephone No.: 

619-817-6026 

Address: 
6941 Rainbow Heights Rd, Fallbrook CA 92028 

Email Address: Account No.: 
atmacsd@yahoo.com 

017664-000 

LOCATION OF PROPOSED ADMINISTRATIVE CODE VARIANCE 
Address: I APN: I ~cres: 

Rainbow Heights Rd Parcel 5, Fallbrook CA 92028; Account No. 017710-000 109-233-10 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
Specific section(s) of the Admin. Code for which this variance is being requested (attach additional pages if needed): 

Ordinance 21-03 under "Water Capacity Charges" 

Reason why the variance should be approved including how the intent of the Admin . Code will be met (attach additional 
pages if necessary): 

Per Ordinance 21-03 "To qualify for a downsize, usage must be within the Max CF/month for the desired 

meter size for the most current 12 month average; APN 109-233-10 is currently an empty parcel with no 

structures, no agricultural use, zero water usage, and no future plans for building or agriculture usage. 

Per Ordinance 21-03 " Downsizing from a 1 inch to a 3/4 inch requires written approval by the fire department 

if the structure is required to have fire sprinklerst APN 109-233-10 has no existing structures and no future 

plans for building structures. 

Rainbow Municipal Water District (District) Provisions: 

The purpose of a variance is to provide flexibility in application of regulations necessary to achieve the purposes of the 
Administrative Code. A variance is intended to resolve practical difficulties or unnecessary physical hardships that may 
result from strict adherence to the policies contained in the Administrative Code. The cost to the applicant of strict 
adherence with any provision of the Administrative Code shall not be the sole reason for granting a variance. This 
application is subject to the approval of the District Board of Directors. 

I hereby certify that all information provided in this application is true. 

(), 1W' Vt,,~----· 

0~ 

3707 Old Highway 395 • Fallbrook, CA 92028 
Phone: (760) 728-1178 • Fax: (760) 728-2575 • www.rainbowmwd.com 

IIRMWD-B\Main\Enginee!ing\Conf!dential\02_Foons\Variance\20181003-VarianceApplication.doc 





Page 128 of 129

METER DOWNSIZE REQUEST 

Date: 09/08/2021 Account No. 017710-000 ----------------
Name: William McEneaney Phone No.: 619-817-6026 

(Please Print) 

Service Address: The empty pad next to our home, Rainbow Heights Rd. 

Billing Address: 6941 Rainbow Heights Rd., Fallbrook, CA, 92028 

Complete Downsize Meter Information (one request per meter): 

From: To: 
Capacity Class: Ref. Size: Capacity Class: Ref. Size: Accessor's Parcel Number: 

D 1.5 
B 0.75 109-233-10-00 

---
-----------

Capacity Classes=Ref. Sizes: A= 5/8", 8=3/4", C=1 ", 0=1 .5", E=2", F=3" 

Indicate the reason for downsizing the existing water meter(s) Please circle one: 

a. Not using as much water 
b. Agricultural Operations suspended 
c. Other (Describe) 

This is an empty building pad, and we do not intend to build on it! 

The District will review the water usage history to determine if a smaller meter is capable of meeting the water 
usage demands and meet Capacity Class requirements. Please note - If you downsize to smaller than a 1-
inch meter, you may not meet fire flow requirements. In addition, services within high- or low-pressure areas 
will be required to sign and record a Notice of High or Low Water Pressure Condition. 

If needed, the customer agrees to install a pressure regulator on their side of the meter and agrees to install 
at his/her cost a booster system to be owned, operated and maintained by the Owner/Agent, his/her 
successors and assigns. 

When approval is granted by the District Engineer for the meter capacity class downsize, the owner 
will be required to sign/notarize a Meter Downsize Agreement. 

BY SIGNING BELOW, THE APPLICANT DECLARES UNDER PENAL TY OF PERJURY AS FOLLOWS: 

1. I have the following legal authority to request meter downsizing as set forth above: 
21 I am the legal owner of the parcel(s) subject to this request and have attached proof of ownership. 
□ I am an authorized agent of the owner of the parcel(s) subject to this request and have attached 

proof of such authorization hereto. 

2. I will immediately notify the Finance Manager of the District if any of the following occur at any point 
prior to completion of the meter downsizing: (a) I cease to have authority to request meter downsizing; 
(b) there is a change in ownership of the parcel(s) subject to this request; or (c) there is a change in 
control of water service under Chapter 8.04 of the Administrative Code. 

3707 Old Highway 395 • Fallbrook, CA 92028 
Phone: (760) 728-1178 • Fax: (760) 728-2575 • www.rainbowmwd.com 

Nolumes/maln/Finance/Group-Englneering/Me(erTasks-Fonm'NEW- DS and removal lonns/DownslzeMe181Request_Jul2020.docc 



Page 129 of 129

3. I acknowledge that this request is subject to and approval is conditioned on compliance with District 
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the District's Administrative Code, including those provisions 
governing the size, number and location of service connections, governing who may request a 
connection and governing the terms of transfer. 

4. I acknowledge that, if in the future a larger water meter is required due to higher water usage, I will be 
required to pay all-past District Operations and Maintenance fees starting from the effective date of 
the Meter Downsize Agreement through the effective date of the signing of the Meter Upsize 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

5. I acknowledge that in the event the District determines that downsizing is not appropriate, I am 
responsible for bringing the account current by paying all unpaid fees assigned to the account and 
hereby agree to make any such payments. 

6. I acknowledge that to the extent downsizing results in unused capacity, the District's obligation to 
recognize such unused capacity, if any, is subject to change and that I may not have a right to such 
unused capacity in the future. Chapter 8.11 of the Administrative Code. 

7. In the event the District incurs any costs or suffers any damage as a result of any misrepresentation, 
any failure to notify the District of a change in authority to request meter downsizing, a change in 
ownership of the parcel(s) subject to this request, or a change in control of water service under 
Chapter 8.04 of the Administrative Code, or in the event this request is determined to be improper for 
any reason, I understand and agree that I will be solely responsible for, and will defend and indemnify 
the District from any such costs and damages, including but not limited to the District's reasonable 
attorney's fees. 

8. I acknowledge that the District has the right to refuse or to discontinue water service at any time to 
protect the District from any fraud or for noncompliance with or violation of any ordinance or rule or 
regulation of the District arising from this request. 

OWNER/ AUTHORIZED AGENT: 

Name: William McEneaney 
Please Print 

Date: 09/08/2021 

L/l,1 .A/ VJ A ~ - L, _,/ 
Signature: ____ .......:...,..,_-___ v_ L/' __ ---------------------===-=v~-------------

FINANCE DEPARTMENT ONLY: 

Approved: D Yes D No 

Comments: ___________________________ _ 

Date Finance Manager 

2 


	AGENDA
	*8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. October 12, 2021

	*12. AUDIT REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCEPTANCE
	*14. CUSTOMER VARIANCE REQUEST – JENSEN
	*15. CUSTOMER VARIANCE REQUEST – MCENEANEY




